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CHAIR'S REVIEW

Reflecting on the past year, it would be easy to focus simply on the serious and well-publicised challenges that the
Arts and Higher Education sectors have been facing in Scotland and the wider UK, and with which we have been
grappling at RCS. However, it is so heartening o see so many highlights shining out throughout the year in terms
of great achievements by both staff and students (many of which are presented in this review), and it is of
tremendous credit to all who contribute and support RCS that the Conservatoire has once more been ranked
among the finest globally, taking 8 place in the QS World University Rankings for Performing Arts 2024.

We have been dealing with the impact of a severely constrained and uncertain financial and operating environment,
combined with effective reductions in public funding over many years, as have our colleagues elsewhere in the Arts
and Higher Education sectors. These factors have all contributed to the financial position of RCS this year,
notwithstanding the welcome award of additional specialist funds from the Scottish Funding Coundil {SFC) and the
continuing support from our own RCS Trusts, enabling RCS to demonstrate financial sustainability. We continue to
be very grateful for the assistance we receive from these Trusts, as well as from our wider pool of individual
supporters, which this year has included a legacy from our former Chair, Nick Kuenssberg. We still miss his wise
counsel and passionate advacacy, but his support continues through his generous gift. Throughout this year staff,
governors and frustees have worked with a strong focus on securing our financial sustainability, whilst continuing
to be committed to embracing creative thinking and innovation in determining our own future.

1t is always helpfui, as Robert Burns put it, to ‘see ourselves as others see us', In this regard I'm struck by the
reflections made by Amelia Whitelaw, the Chief Executive of Interface, the central hub cannecting organisations
from a wide variety of national and international industries to ail of Scotland's universities, research institutes and
colleges. In opening the Scottish Knowiedge Exchange Awards, hosted this year at RCS, she observed the
following:

‘RCS is an integral force in Scolland’s cultural and economic fabric, championing innovation in and beyond the
performing arts. Its interdisciplinary approach extends fo technology, education, and health, enriching Scotland's
artistic heritage and fuelling economic growth.

By fostening international talent and cultural tourism, RCS not only amplifies Scofiand’s global presence but also
serves as a calalyst for cross-sector innovation and prosperity.’

Amelia is of course right RCS js an integral force in the socio-economic and cultural landscape of Scotland as well
as an international leader in performance and preduction arts education and research, and we should not forget it.
Our excellence was recognised this year in a record award of SFC Knowledge Exchange and Innovation funding,
which wilt help us continue to develop and extend this vital area of our work,

Our core mission remains delivering excellence and, central to the strategic plan People, Place and Promise,
remain the ambitions that RCS continues to be a national and internationally excellent home for professional
vocational training and research in performance and production arts, leading the way as one of the world’s top
conservatoires. Our mission remains too that RCS graduates will envich the performing arts with new work and will
create the future of performance for generations to come. It's important that they will be engaged citizens as well
as important contributors to the creative economy in their future careers. This Annual Review gives many excellent
examples of the many ways in which RCS and its community of students, staff and alumni are engaged and
impactful locally, nationally, and internationally.

Change and innovation are constants for an institution that demands to be relevant and future facing, and in this
regard, | want to thank the colieagues and students, led by Deputy Principal Dr Lois Fitch, who participated this
year in a significant curricutar review. The new curricuium they have designed introduces a portfolio of professional
preparation modules which prioritise entrepreneurial, and student led activities themed around areas such as digital
arts innovation, inclusivity, sustainability and a creative citizenship module which embeds life and self-care skills in
the care curriculum.

We are, of course, an ensemble instifution and creative collaborators, just like the artforms and disciplines we teach
and research. There are 30 many people to thank warmily for their contributions including my fellow govemors, our
academic and profassional services staff, our supporters and, at the heart of all we do, our brilliant students who
shine while hera and have such impacts in the world when they leave. | want especially to thank the RCS Trusts
and Trustees led by Lady Dorrian for their continuing considerate support of the Conservatoire, which has been
particularly impartant this year.
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We are indeed, as our strategic plan attests, a special place of people and of promise, led so skillfully by our
Principal, Professor Jeffrey Sharkey, with the support and talent of the Conservatoire’'s Senior Leadership Team. |
would like to thank them ali for the energy and dedication they have devoted to their work and leadership this year,
and the results that these have delivered for RCS.

RCS continues to be a word class, engaged and impactful community of performing arts students and
professionals making a difference to individuals, Scotland, and the world. We should all be very proud of this, whilst
ensuring we continue our work together to secure an ambitious, sustainable future for the RCS, this place we all
cherish and champion.

Professor Dorothy Miel
Chair
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNORS

The Governors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2024,
Constitution

RCS is a company limited by guarantee and having capital divided into shares with a Company Registration
No.SC04703. it was incorporated as the Glasgow Athenaeum in December 1900, having been established in 1847
to provide further education for aduits in the fields of commerce, science, and the arts. it is now an institution of higher
education and was awarded degree awarding powers for taught degrees by the Privy Councii on 13 May 1994,

The terms of the constifution, membership, powers and proceedings of the Board of Governors are currently set down
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association as varied by, and in conformity with the provisions of, The Royal
Conservatoire of Scotland Order of Council 2014 No. 268 as amended by The Royal Conservatoire of Scotland
Amendment Order of Councit 2020 No.3.

RCS is recognised by HMRC as a charity and is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator —
No.5C015855.

Corporate Structure

A representative of each of the key constituencies of RCS holds a block of shares. Those constituencies are: students
represented by the President of the Students’ Union; staff represented by their elected staff Governors; senior
management and Academic Board represented by the Principal; and the Chair representing the Board of Governors
and wider society. A descendant of one of RCS's philanthropic founding families also retaing a shareholding.
Sharehoiders are entitied fo vote at the Annual General Meeting to which all staff, students and a wide range of
external stakeholders are invited with the opportunity fo ask questions.

Principal activity

The principat activity of RCS is the provision of teaching, learning and research in, and for, the performing arts.
Programmes offered range from short courses for young children through to PhD and include all genres of the
performing arts and arts education.

Vision

A sustainable community that nurtures, supports, and celebrates inclusive art making from grass roots to world-
leading performance and production,

Mission

For RCS’s education engagement and research in the performing arts to be a catalyst to shape the future of art forms,
artists, and society.

Valiues

Creative courage
Compassion
Constructive challenge
Curiosity

Craft, rigour and talent
Community

e & & o & &
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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Board of Governors approved the Strategic Plan 2023-30 in June 2023.

The vision, mission, values and objectives of our new plan can be viewed and will be evaluated through three
perspectives: people, place and promise within which are grouped nine high level objectives and delivered via
operational plans. These are noted below together with development and performance throughout the year.

People: Taleni Development

Objective 1: Talented and motivated staff who use artistic, research, professional and industry
developments to enhance the Conservatoire’s international leadership in multi-arts education from pre-HE
to all ages

Progress 2023-24

A People and Culture Committae (P&CC) was formed. At its inaugural meeting members selected four priority
projects for 2023-24, These were to create (1) an Academic Workload Allocation Model for staff, (2} space in the
curriculum, the estate and the production cycle, (3} structured channels of open and transparent communications,
and {4) to discuss pay and benefits.

A workload allocation model for academic staff was devised and piloted in 2023-24, it will be rolied out fully in 2024-
25, enabling managers to plan mare effectively with their teams and to ring fence time for professional development,
scholarship and research more visibly and ciearly. An appropriate workload model for professional services staff
will be developed collaboratively with staff in 2024-25,

The introduction of ‘Engagement/Knowledge Exchange activity’, recognised as a category in the planner for the
first time enables those staff who undertake engagement work (for example developing initiatives with professionat
industry partners such as an innovative recycling and repurpesing scheme in the props department) to be allocated
protected time in their workload, The curriculum review project undertaken in 2023-24 rationalised student and staff
workload by redesigning production throughput and the elective options portfolio. Programme design teams were
specifically asked to demonstrate how they were creating reasonable learning and teaching loads to enable space
for personal development for both staff and students. Students were involved in every programme review and
asked specifically about workload and the range of their studies over their courses. Within the School of Drama
Dance Production and Film (DDPF) this has created space to provide greater opporiunity for exploration within the
rehearsal space and to reduce the demands on the central production unit.

As part of the P&CC plan initiatives, and especially project 3, a staff survey working group was formed to devise
and deliver an annual staff survey which was rolled aut in sarly 2024 and analysed, and outcomes fed back to the
PRCC as well as the staff at RCS as a whole.

A staff survey was issued in Spring 2024, with initial outcomes shared with staff later in the academic year. A range
of themes emerging will form the basis for further staff support and development initiatives in 2024-25 and the
P&CC will again select projects to prioritise in the year ahead at its first meeting of the 2024-25 cycle. Work
commenced on a review of the pay grade structure with consultation taking place with staff and trade unions, but
this was put on hold due to financial uncertainties and continues to be on hold as the sector undertakes work to
review the national framework and the impact of the real living wage on the pay scale. In the interim RCS has
maintained pay differentiation at the lower end of the pay scale. Some progress has been made io broaden the
range of non-pay benefits to reflect the differing range of pricrities and value proposition our staff assign to benefits.

In 2023-24 teams who had been working mostly remotely since the pandemic returned to more regular patterns of
onsite working, facilitated — where appropriate — to be onsite 60% of the fime, and otherwise enabled to work from
home. This mostly applies to professional services teams, and is not without challenges, but has been valued.

We support several staff to undertake PhDs or Masters gualifications relevant to their role and/or research interests.
There are also a number of staff underiaking the PG Certificate in order to benefit their development as teachers.
Although the ulimate intention is to develop a reward and recognition pay scale which rewards particularly
successful recruiting teachers for example, work has yet to begin on developing this in detail given the constraints
on finances.

Launched in 2014 our MEd in Teaching and Learning in the Arts is designed fo meet the professional development
needs of arts educators across all formal and informal education contexts and across all artforms, including RCS
staff, partners and visiting staffiprofessionals. The stream of funding (upskilling) that fully funded student places on
the MEd was withdrawn from the end of 2023-24. Extra efforts have been put into recruiting a viable cohort for
2024-25, when a tuition fee has been introduced, including additional programme information sessions hosted by
the teaching staff. This programme will be reviewed alongside other postgraduate taught programmes in 2024-25,

The annual Naticnal Student Survey (NSS) overall satisfaction score was an improvement on the previous year
with overall satisfaction at 75% {2023: 73%). New staff-student forums were convened in each School and effective
in sharing information and receiving student feedback. Several programmes including BA Modern Ballet and BA
Acting achieved very high scores in the NSS, and overall, institutional scores in teaching quality, assessment and
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feedback and staff quality exceeded national benchmarks and previous RCS results. The library resources and
associated learning support were ranked third in the UK for quality.

The Conservatoire's annual meeting with Quality Assurance Agency (QAA) Scotland identified good progress in
enhancement areas following the Quality and Standards Enhancement Review (QESR) Phase 1 process in late
2022, The Deputy Principal has participated across numerous Universities Scotland forums in consultation,
feedback and workshops developing the new Tertiary Quality Enhancement Framework for Scotland, the new
Tertiary Quality Enhancement Review method and the new Assurance and Accountability Framework for the
Scottish Funding Council, all to be introduced in AY 2024-25. RCS was again ranked highly in the QS World
Rankings at No 6 (2023: No¢ 6).

Objective 2: Students and graduates who create the future of performance and production, specialising
and colfaborating successfully

Progress 2023-24

In 2023-24 six DDPF undergraduate programmes were revalidated successfully, by panels including leading
industry professionals and external academics. The new curriculum introduces a portfolio of professional
preparation modules calfed Infer-disciplinary and extended practice which prioritises entrepreneurial, and student
led activity themed around areas such as digitat arts innovation, inclusivity, sustainability and a creative citizenship
module which embeds life and self-care skills in the core curriculum. Many colleagues who are currently at the
forefront of the profession were heavily involved in the design of the new curriculum bringing their considerable
expertise into this enhancement of the student experience.,

The ballet graduation performance involving a collaboration with preduction and choreography and involving the
use of digital projection and mentoring from industry professionals is sector leading and RCS is the only UK school
producing such work. Renowned choreographers worked with students successfully, and these partnerships will
grow in future years. At the end of the academic year, a School of Dance was created within the Deputy Principal
Directorate. This decision was made to facilitate the journey for young dancers from pre-HE through to degree level
study, fo recognise the parallels with learming in Music, and to consolidate the potential for collaborative synergies
between drama, production and an expanded film UG programme,

The production throughput has been reviewed hofisticaily and per programme across DDPF in response to student
and staff feedback around workload and following good practice in the industry around ensuring reasonable
working environments for production artists. This initiative has also resulted in more equitable access to major
venuas for programmes, enhancing the student experience.

The digitat_QOn the Verge' festival continues to develop as an important strand within the MA Classical and
Contemporary Text (CCT) pregramme and has been part of RCS performance calendar for over ten years, during
which time many of the artists have gone on to tour their work nationally and beyond. It is a showgase of new work
by our MAMFA Classical and Contemporary Text Acting and Directing students, celebrating ambition and
entrepreneurial creativity.

The 2023-24 ‘Make it Happen' Fund defivered smait grants to UK based RCS graduates. Ten artists each received
grants from the competitive fund that provides financial support for everything from training, networking and testing
ideas to starting up companies, staging pop-up events and forming new collaborations.

Graduates of the BA Performance in British Sign Language (BSL) and English continue to change the landscape
of performance raising the profile of Deaf performance and bringing it to a wider audience including the performance
of "The Ghost of Alexander Blackwood' at the Edinburgh Deaf Festival directed and produced by alumni Benny
Zanetti and Jamie Rea respectively which runs alongside, and partners with, the Fringe.

Objective 3: RCS as partner-of-choice for prestigious forward-looking organisations, artistic leaders and
entrepreneurs

Progress 2023-24

RCS is a partner-of-cheice for highly innovative organisations which want to make a difference.

A significant new collaborative partnership was launched with Scottish Opera in early 2024 which will underpin a
new Arlist Diploma (1 year) as part of the suite of posigraduate taught programme reviews to be finalised in 2024-
25 in which students will receive tuition and a production at RCS and be cast in a production at Scottish Opera.
Discussions with the University of St. Andrews began to assess the feasibility of the award being validated under
our partnership arrangements for SCQF Level 12 awards, along with the DPerf and PhD,

RCS partneraed with the Creative Entreprensurs Club to pilot a bespoke resource for creative enterprise at the
Conservatoire. RCS Creative Pop-Up ran from September 2023 to March 2024 and supported just under 100
members of RCS community to develop their ideas, projects, collaborations and freelancing skills. The pilot was
delivered through one-to-one advice clinics and group workshops. Consulfations with staff and users confirmed the
need for the service to continue beyond the pifot phase with an enhanced offer. As a result, we will open the
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Creative Enterprise Development Office {CEDQO} in October to provide an embedded specialist enterprise and
careers support service to our community of students, steff and recent graduates.

Our long-term partnership with The Glasgow School of Art (GSA) and Queen Margaret University on SHIFT has
continued since 2019 and partners have signed an MOU to extend the programme for three more years. SHIFT is
a one-week intensive development programme for creative freelancers and runs every year in September. The
programme takes up to 100 participants annually and in recent years a small number of places have been offered
to creative arts cohorts at other HEls. This year places were offered to creative arts students at University of
Glasgow, Stirfling University and University of Aberdeen. Over 500 pecople have now participated on SHIFT. In
2024/25 we will commission an independent evaluation of the programme and its participants to understand more
fully how it supports the ecosystem of creative arts entrepreneurs in Scofiand.

Anocther partnership of riote in 2023/24 is with University of Glasgow which led on the Creative Founders Fund,
delivered in collaboration with RCS and GSA. Funded entirely by the University this new and highly distinclive
enterprise development programme targets academic staff in creative arts with early-stage entrepreneurial ideas
with impact potential. Three members of staff from RCS received grants to develop their propositions alongside a
taillored support programme. Round 2 of Creative Founders Fund will launch in November 2024 and will be offered
once more in partnership with RCS and GSA. The programme aims o strengthen the cohort of creative arts
propositions emerging from our institutions and to foster collaboration across the three HEls.

RCS hosted the Scottish Knowledge £xchange Awards in March 2024. Led by Interface, this is the flagship event
to celebrate partnerships between business, third sector, public sector organisations and academia.

The BA Filmmaking underwent significant change in review in 2023-24, better reflecting the industry needs, and
will grow by over 30 student places in the next three years. This recognises industry demand for skilled filmmakers,
producers, editors and sound artists as reflected in parinerships with the BBC, Screen Scotland, and independent
filmmaking companies like Blazing Griffin. Filmmaking continues fo contribute significantly fo Scotland’s creative
economy. Scotland is a destination of choice for film locations, and the programme is responding to increased
demand for skilled practitioners. Additionally, a low-residency Masters programme supporting writing or
composition for digital media will be validated in the 2024-25 cycle.

RCS continues to explore international opportunities. Resources have been focused intensively onh enhancing
international recruitment fo core taught programmes, and the development of new provision to be delivered in
Scotland.

Place: Size and Scope of RCS

Objective 4: Playing a prominent role in national cuitural leadership, as well as enhancing our gichal artistic
and educational impact. Being active citizens of Glasgow, as well as having a positive creative impact
wherever we are.

Progress 2023-24

Leadership in learning: At Pre-HE level RCS’s Music Leaders Awards this year gained recognition on Insight, the
Scottish Government system which recognises aftainment in Scottish schools. Our pre-HE activities continue to
evolve and Scottish Credit and Qualifications Framework (SCQF) credit-rated provision expands, with an
associated increase in students achieving accreditation at levels 5 and 6. Several new RCS Pre-HE courses offer
the fiexibility of in-person or onfine study. Other examples of RCS's impact in pre-HE includes our RCS's leadership
rale in Scotland’s Music Education Partnership Group (MEPG) as well as hosting the Scettish Young Musician of
the Year competition finals 2023-24 and the Scottish instrumental Teachers Network Conference.

RCS's unigue Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with BBC Scotland further deepened through a range of
strategic activity including masterclasses and student performance opportunities at Pacific Quay and other
locations across Scotland, professional insight and engagement with students on a range of programmes including
film and production; work opportunities for students, inciuding BBC Scotland's Children in Nead's first BSL signing
Pudsey; strong interconnectivity with BBC internal netwarks including Enigma, the broadcaster's neurodivergent
network co-founded by an RCS alumnus. RCS also supported the development and delivery of BBC Scotland
Young Classical and Young Jazz Musicians and co-hosted the semi-finals of BBC Scotland's inaugural Young
Scottish Classical Musician competition.

Our sector leading education offer continues to evolve with the development of a new BA Arts with Community
programme to launch September 2025, and development of a new articulation arrangement with two FE Colleges
in the development of a top-up degree {BA Dance Artisis) which will focus primarily on Commercial Dance.

Global Artistic & Educational Impact RCS has several deepening international academic parinerships including,
for example, Sibelius Academy where in the past year a collaborative strings project has been undertaken taking
RCS's Ukrainian students to Helsinki and culminating in a concert attended by the President of Finland. This is part
of en-going strategic engagerment with Sibelius {a sister world-leading institution} across a range of depariments
including Strings, Brass and Traditional Music, which has included co-sponsoring an international academic
conference hosted at RCS. A bid is cumently in place to use the Scoftish Government's new Scottish Education
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Exchange Programme {SEEP) fo support further collaboration next current academic year between staff and
students at Sibelius and RCS and new composition,

in addition, new Memoranda of Understanding have been signed with the following institutions during the year:

+ Fondazione Mascarade Opera, ltaly ("Mascarade Opera")
+  The Yehudi Menuhin School, China
» Berklee College of Music/ Boston Conservatory

Buring the year, the Principal undertook a prominent role as Vice-President of the Association of European
Conservateires which extends the reach and networking capabilities on behalf of RCS. He is also Chair of
Censervatoires UK Juniors. The Deputy Principal was elected Vice President of the Royal Musical Association for
a period of four years and has joined the Board of the Music Education Partnership Group.

RCS hosted the Scottish Intemational Piano Competition 2023 and was invited to deliver o a keynote speech at
the International Education Attaches event at Scotland House, London, as well as being invited to participate in
Going Global: International Education Summit hosted by the British Council. RCS's global artistic impact is also
evidenced by the continued and many successes of student, staff and alumni across a wide range platforms &
disciplines including wing across BAFTA, BAFTA Scotiand, Emmys and inciude Ethan Loch (BMus 2} Silver Medal
at the Nashville International Chopin Competition; Melia Simonot (BMus 4) winner of BBC Scotland's inaugural
Young Classical Musician Award and RCS Lark Trio winners of the Cavatina Intercollegiate Chamber Competition
held at the Wigmore Hall.

Active Citizens of Glasgow and Scotland: RCS has participated in developing a range of strategies and emerging
areas of thought leadership in the city and elsewhere including Glasgow Culture Strategy, Scottish Culture
Strategy, Scottish International Education Strategy, Glasgow Commission; Sauchiehall Street Culture and Heritage
District. RCS has also created convening opportunities for a range of civic organisations inciuding the Institute of
Directors, Prosper (formerly Scottish Council for Development and Industry), Glasgow Chamber and British Council
Scotland.

We have also hosted engagement visits from a wide range of local, Scottish and UK peliticians including the
Cabinet Secretary for Education, Minister for Higher Education, Under Secretary of State for Scotland, Scottish
Labour leader and shadow education and culture teams.

Objective 5: Becoming an exemplar for our sector and nation in sustainable, ethical and inclusive initiatives
across our portfolio, estate and community.

Progress 2023-24-

RCS's Digital Strategy was approved in 2023-24 and commits to enabling the community with digital skifls. The
result from the Joint Information Systems Committee (JISC) Digital Insights Survey were mixed and revealed the
broadest range of skills and experience across the staff, leading to action planning for the year ahead to support
upskiliing and more widespread engagement with technologies. A new format was intreduced for the Technology-
Enhanced Learning Forum which was presentation-led and interactive, enabling colleagues to present recent
projects to staff and student members, and stimulating developmental discussion about future projects and
coltaborations.

Across DDPF, there have been efforts to increase the focus on training actors for screen and media, seif-taping,
digital production, recycling and repurposing sets, props and costume, and using outdoor locations for some
activities. Notabie examples include the BA Modern Ballet final degree show 2024, and the strand in the reviewed
BA Acting programme that enhances the provision of acting for screen,

As part of programme reviews, the School of DDPF has undertaken Equality Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)/Anti-
Racism training for staff which will lead onto consideration of repertoire and casting, looking at ways to approach
more ‘canonical’ texts that are more inclusive and anti-racist and exploring ways to expose students to a more
diverse set of plays even when the cohorts don't have the people necessary to cast them. A school-wide EDI plan
has been agreed and implemented in 2023-24. One initiative of note is the ‘plays unseen but heard’ in BA Acting,
enabling a non-public ‘closed’ read-through of materials that we could not present publicly, because of the cultural
representation in the cobort, but which nonetheless ensures that students encounter texts about or by minority
figures, thereby contextualising their own professional development, irrespective of their own personal identities.

The School of Music has entered into a partnership with Black Lives in Music, an organisation that facilitates
workshops and offers provocations to artistic planning and curriculum planners to ensure increased inclusivity of
practice in programmes and assessments. The Artistic Programme across the year aims to include composers,
performers and other professionals from under-represented groups so that, taken as a whole, the programming is
more inclusive and diverse than in any previous academic cycle. Students’ supporting Academic/Contextual
Studies work also includes diverse musical traditions and practices in elective modules and embedded content in
core studies of musical histories and styles.

New student and staff training (for example consent training) was given prominence in the induction week

programme. The Curriculum Review for Production and other Drama programmes drew atiention to the necessity
for reasonable workioads and working patterns for production students and tutors.
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Staff recruitment and engagement with visiting specialists has prioritised inclusivity, accessibility, and reflecting
{and even challenging) indusiry practices. Training for visiting staff has been improved, and expectations
communicated more clearly. This was a focus of several UG DDPF programme reviews in 2023-24. Students were
included in every programme review process, offering feedback to external professionats, which in turn led to their
receiving accounts of real industry experience. One enhancement point that will be used for all future reviews that
proved successful was bringing together recent graduates (some international) with current students, so that the
group coutd engage in discussion on early career prospects, learnings and networks.

The revalidated Production programmes have both introduced increased focus on digital technologies and
sustainability initiatives into the curriculum as core components for all students, irrespective of their production
specialism. Likewise, BA Acting has deepened the Acting for Media content in the degree.

Sustainability initiatives introduced during the vear across a range of activities are highlighted in the environmental
sustainability section below.

Objective 6: Assuring a financially sustainable instifutional ecology and estate to deliver a prosperous and
artistically rich future for the organisation, community and Scotland.

Progress 2023-24

In 2023-24 RCS successfully applied for an additional £1.00M $SI grant from the SFC. This grant is to assist the
Conservatoire in maintaining its world-leading status and to undertake transformation work towards financial
sustainability. A number of projects were outlined as part of the bid, including reforming the curriculum through
review and the development of new programmes, expanding the Short Courses portfolio and income streams, the
development of the low-residency Masters programmes and the implementation of systems upgrades in HR,
Payroll and Finance.

A new student recruitment strategy has heen developed to map out the size and scope of future student numbers
covering: portfolio, UGG balance and mix of fuition fee categories achievable within current estate and based on
capacity, instrument resources and cohort size constraints (DDPF). Several key decisions have been made in the
course of 2023-24 to maximise recruitment and income potential: an MA in production wiil 'bolt on’ to the MA CCT
programme, thus reducing costs of externally-hired production staff to support CCT and increasing the numbers of
students supported into the profession in production disciplines; new low-residency (blended) Masters programmes
are in development (see below). These will support growth in the PGT population and enable smart programme
design bringing together residential periods in the summer when campus space is more available to align with
summer courses, allowing content to 'double up' and offer maximum flexibility to learners and to RCS in delivery
modes. The efficiencies in production throughput enacted through the DDPF programmes review will enable space
and capacity to engage in more commercial short course provision,

Both schools have committed o growth, This has precipitated conversations and planning in relfation to resources
(for example School of Music (SoM) has recruited many additional pianists for 2024-25, requiring some repurposing
of rooms and instruments). SoM has projected PGT growth over the next five years, with a particular focus on
international student recruitment. Planning has been underway throughout 2023-24 towards two new low-residency
Masters programmes {MA Creative Arts Practice and MA Arts Leadership and Fundraising). The former can
accommodate several specialisms as learners choose their specialist focus: typical pathways anticipated include
writing or composition for digital media; choreography and intimacy co-ordination; improvisation practice. We aiso
plan to validate a low-residency/blended MFA module, which could be taken by students once they've completed
their MA or MMus. This increases flexibility, so that students who might do a 2-year MMus full ime, resident in
Glasgow, could then pursue the 'top-up’ MFA module; equally, a student in choreography may choose to study the
MA and MFA components in a blended way throughout. The MFA module can also be taken alongside employment
in the performing arts, accrediting work-based learning and critical reflection on creative practice.

BA Filmmaking was revalidated successfully in June 2024. It will grow by 30 student places over three years.
Although these numbers appear modest, in the context of the specialist tuition and kit required, this is a significant
change in the cohort size, and has impacts on space use in the Conservatoire, kit costs and student recruitment.
A cohort of 27 students will matriculate in September 2024, Future plans include an emphasis on recruiting both
from Scottish-domiciled applicants and internationally, More detail is given above under reporting against Objective
3

The CPP programime, which is being phased out, had only iwo cohorts in 2023-24 and the MA in Musical Theatre
ran in 2023-24 for the final ime. The space ‘savings’ are offset by the growth in Filmmaking, SoM numbers and
the planned introduction of a BA Arts with Community, as well as three Fair Access programmes. However, some
space gains in 2023-24 arose from the reduction in demand from Contemporary Performance Practice (CPP) and
it was possible to accommodate growth in the Short Courses portfolie.

Estate discussions have proven challenging across 2023-24. In part this has been due to the exposure of practices
in bookings versus real use that have impeded effective planning, and we have identified opportunities to be more
efficient in the use of the estate through the introduction of a central timetable from September 2025. it is hoped
that this project will not only rationalise use of space per programme but give better clarity on building use and
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reveal any missed the opportunities for commercial lets. The primary objective however is to make the campus
work more efficiently and effectively for planned growth of activity, and in doing so reveal the extent {o which
additional space is required to support future planned growth, and of what type and specification.

A tuition fee reset was agreed and approved by the Board of Governors in June 2023 to come into effect from
2024-25. This will put additional pressure on scholarship funds, and RCS Trust has agreed fo increase the sum
avaitable with the support of RCS Endowment Trust to help secure student numbers. Although the fee reset
generated some discussion with the students via their Union, the increase in fees does not seem to have dampened
application numbers,

The School of Music agreed a rebasing of 1;1 hours using a formula approach that is common across Music
Conservatoires in the UK, This will be implemented from 2024-25 and is launched in tandem with postgraduate
curriculum review and the rollout of the staff worklead allocation model. This will enable better clarity and efficiency
of planning staff time, student workload, room requirements and departmental budgets and results in savings as
ali activities are now factored into the formula approach. DDPF review also required each programme to work
within constraints of a new budget formula which serves the same ultimate purpose — better visibility of costs and
income/contribution, and workload allocation and balance.

Promise; Growth and Ambition

Objective 7: Delivering ambitious phitanthropic investment in student and staff success, to supplement
core funding and generate more competitive scholarship capital.

The team was firstly delighted to have exceeded its annual target raising as well as securing a further £0.15M worth
of instruments. RCS secured additional support from RCS Endowment Trust during the year to grow fundraising
capacity which will continue for up to five years subject to annual review. This allows a greater focus on Trust and
Foundation bids with the appointment of a new Trusts and Foundations officer and a greater focus on Donor
development and Legacy donations through the appointment of a new Legacy and Partnership officer. RCS has
also invested in the strategic development of fundraising in the USA aligned with alumni development and
recruitment. A US consultant has been appointed who will work closely with RCS's International Advisory Board
(IAB} to develop engagement, philanthropic and student recruitment opportunities in North America on behalf of
RCS, will help recruit new IAB members, ensure the case for supporting RCS in North America is compelling, and
work with RCS's leadership to cultivate relationships with prospective donors and sponsors. This includes
development of relations with the Scottish Offices at the British Embassies in the USA and Canada and networking
at events.

Working with academic leaders and programmes teams across the conservatoire, the alumni relations manager
has this year created 21 Programme Ambassadors and 6 Regional/National Ambassadors. Ambassadors have
undertaken a range of activity on behalf of individual programmas, as well as representing RCS in a range of
activity and fora. There has been a growing range of alumni events in London, New York, Edinburgh and at RCS
which have all been well attended. This activity includes a now-annual opportunity for reconnection during Festival
time in Edinburgh. Alumni activity is now in the process of extending to Junior Conservatoire with composer Patrick
Doyle appointed this year as a Patron of Junior Conservatoire and a new Patron for Junior Conservatoire of Drama,
Production and Film is due to be appointad soon in the next academic year. The alumni commaunity is growing, and
we are now in active engagement with more than 4,700 alumni across the world.

At the end of 2023-24 a new Friends and Patrons scheme was launched aimed at securing more support for the
Conservataire in a structured membership scheme. This new initiative was developed following an intensive period
of research. The programme has been well received since faunch and already has aftracted new Gold and Silver
Patrons. As noted above RCS Trust has pledged additional funds for scholarships for the next academic year to
support recruitment and retention of students.

Objective 8: Delivering growth in identified areas of the portfolio to drive sustainability of the institution,
focal and national creative economy, and prepare employable artists to meet the demands of the creative
sector.

Progress 2023-24

As outlined under objectives above, Low Residency Masters programmes are in development, and as of the end
of 2023-24 are opening for application. We have scoped a number of pathways initially and undertaken market
research to establish potential demand and we will pursue our established Quality Assurance processes to bring
these to market, with a view to matriculating students {0 the courses from September 2025.

Our enterprise support has expanded and developed over the years of the Universities innovation Fund. RCS
benefitted from a significant new Knowledge Exchange and Innovation Fund announced in the latest SFC funding
round, recognising the enterprising work of the Knowledge Exchange Manager and team. This will be deployed in
part to invest in staff and space resource which will strengthen the engagement infrastructure at RCS and enable
growth and partnership-building to continue to ensure RCS has a strong impact on creative innovation in Scotland,
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in 2023/24 Engagement became the third mission of RCS alongside Research and Education. This underpins our
ambition to catalyse significant growth across three areas of work that sit within the mission: Enterprise, Innovation
& Public Engagement. The Engagement & Creative Economy Action Plan outlines the specific actions we will take
and how we will measure progress and success 1o 2030. The work is oversean by a new Engagement Committee
chaired by the Principal. The action plan aligns closely with the new KEIF (Knowledge Exchange & innovation
Fund} which directly funds this activily in HE across Scotland, aligns also with the Scottish Government
Entrepreneurial Campus Strategy, NSET (National Strategy for Economic Transformation) and Scottand’s
Innovation Strategy.

In 2024/25 Engagement at RCS will include:

Enterprise — The Creative Enterprise Development Office will become the recognised enterprise support brand at
RCS, offering Advice & Guidance and expert clinics, seed funding for staff, students and graduates and Enterprise
Development Programmes such as SHIFT and Creative Founders Fund.

Inpovation - innovation Studio will re-start in Spring 2025 and become an embedded resource for staff and students
offering funding, residencies and R&D opportunities.

Public Engagement - The Athenaeum Awards are a catalyst for the public engagement work of our staff and will
restart in September 2024 with a raft of new awards for Research & Engagement. These include a new
Engagement Award.

Contributing to the broader creative economy

We supported regional creative economy ambitions in 2023/24 through a time limited extension of our RCS
Creative Pop-Up pilot delivered to creative arts students across Glasgow City Region HEls. This was achieved
through a successful bid to the Scottish Enterprise Ecosystem Fund to further test the need and suitability of the
specialist services and their impact. The project Glasgow Creative Clinics supported just under 200 individuals
from partner HE institutions through one-to-one advice sessions and a diverse programme of events and
workshops.

RCS hosted a visit from Scotland’s Chief Entrepreneur, Mark Logan, to discuss creative entrepreneurship, its
growing potential to support Scotland’s recovering economy and included a spotlight on the specific role the
Conservatoire holds as an incubator for micro enterprises and self-employed practiioners, demonstrating
disproportionately high numbers of SMEs year on year.

Expansion of our Engagement work included the creation of a new Intellectual Property (IP) Policy for the
Conservatoire. The policy has been well received by staff through an all-staft consuitation and by the Board of
Governors and Academic Board. The Policy is now at final stages, having had some minor revisions, and will be
embedded as in instifutional policy in autumn 2024, It is specifically desighed to support an open and positive
culture around 1P, encouraging staff to consider how they might exploit the [P they generate, while also affording
the Conservatoire protection for its teaching materials, and other significant investments.

Objective 8: Generating significant income and commercial opportunity through the expansion of areas
such as specialist short course provision,

Progress 2023-24:

The pertfolio continues to expand both strategically and in response to growing market appetite for short courses
across all strands of our provision. We have developed and delivered 37 new programmes, drawing on existing
expertise and knowledge. Flexibility in course delivery (online or in-person) has aiso expanded the engagement
with the offer, and a corporate interest requested the design of bespoke material, setting a precedent for future
areas for development in commercial partnership work, Recruitment to summer programmes in 2024 remains
strong with 1,278 participants onsite accessing the portfolio.

Specialist Short Course pravision priorities have been developed ~ principally the addition of accreditation as
sought by the learner and further development of school learner pathways (such as the expansion of Music Leaders
Scotland Awards), This has been structured to enable participants to either engage with the leaming, credit or
both. The workload allocation model will enable capacity to be identified for staff engagement in new development
of short courses, and provision that is no longer available in the UG curriculum (part of the Options Portfolio) has
been converted, where possible, into commercial short course materials. Additional staffing and marketing resource
has been invested to strengthen the team, enabling responsive in-year design to react to market needs as
identified.

The decision at the end of 2023-24 to create a standalone School of Dance will enhance provision in Junitors Dance,
ensuring a curriculum can be designed that fully aligns with the degree provision, and enables better progression
for Scottish domiciled dancers into HE. Furthermore, the resultant distillation of Drama, Film and Production juniors
into one unit will facilitate closer alignment between these cognate disciplines and enable specific provision to
evolve that again foreshadows the HE programmes in these areas optimally.

The Directorate continues to proactively seek other revenue and partners, progress in this area includes weicoming
323 young Chinese participants to summer schools (through Joy International}; falks with providers to upskill their
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workforce through our Masters in Education (MEd) pathways; and the successful delivery of our first immersive
“experience” summer school — Conservatoire at the Castle. This premium product attracted a small but focused
international cohort who travelled to participate in this residential opportunity. This innovation received positive
feedback, and we shail be developing other immersive experience style products over the coming year.

Challenges presented by the Geo-political situation and the cost of living crisis and mitigating actions

The Geo-political situation remains challenging. An escalating crisis both in Ukraine and israel/Gaza as well as
continued economic hardship in many markets where we recruit, has resulted in increased competition for students
between institutions and nations, as well as additional support resources and management efforts to maintain a
safe and stable community in the institution. Increasing rhetoric around immigration into the UK, and some of it
unfortunately focused on immigration of students to so-called ‘fow value degrees' has undoubtedly diminished
consumer confidence in UKHE. As a small institution, this is particularly felt when we fall even a few short of target
recruitment places. Finally, our ‘yield rate' of offers to accepts remained stubbornly low in 2023-24, as low as 44%
in Music which reflects the intensity of competition and in part levels of financial support on offer from our
competitors for the best students.

Although inflation is easing in general, we continue to be affected by price increases in many good and services
and alongside that there is pressure to try to address the increased cost of living on staff.

To mitigate these challenges RCS is focused on developing its programme portfolio and content to remain relevant
and attractive to the changing market, both domestic and international underpinned with a refreshed recruitment
team and strategy, recognising that sustainable student number growth must be supported by an increase in
scholarship funds and this one of the main aims of the increased fundraising capacity. The low-residency masters
programmes have the potential to reach a wider market and provide a more affordable and flexible pathway to
higher level qualifications as part of income diversification, Work is underway to make more effective use of staff
and space resource which is also a key part of ensuring that the cost pressures are mitigated.

Environmental Sustainability
Energy Use and GHG Emissions

The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Reguiations 2013 reguires all non-quoted
large companies to report the greenhouse gas emissions for which they are responsible and on any
environmental matters which are material to the company's operations. This disclosure complies with the
requirements of Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR).

Greenhouse gas emissions by year (tonnes CQ%);

Emissions source {CO%) 2023/24 % of total 20224234 % of total
Fuel combustion: Natural gas 455.5 59.86% 404.7 55.01%
Purchased electricity 305.5 40.14% 319.2 44.09%
Total emissions (tCO%) 761.0 100.00% 723.9 100.00%
Carbon intensity: t1CO2e per m? 3 0.0337 0.0320

Energy consumption by year (kWh):

Energy consumption by year {(kWh}) 2023/24 % of total 2022723 % of total
Natural gas 2,490,685 62.8% 2,212,453 58.94%
Purchased electricity 1,475,549 37.2% 1,541,484 41.06%
Total energy (kWh) 3,966,243 100.00% 3,753,837 100.00%
Energy intensity: kWh per m?[& 175.58 166.18

1. Reflects adjusted energy consumption and carbon emissions for the 2022/23 academic year fo improve
accuracy of data reporting foflowing internal verification and assurance. Corrections address discrepancies
from factors including utilities meter replacement, use of estimated data in supplier invoices, and occasional
input errors.

2. Gross internal Boor area: Rerfrew Street 17,881 ni2, Wallace Studios 4,708 m?

In 2023/24, CO2e emissions rose by 5% compared to the previous year. This increase is mainly due to a 13% rise
in gas consumption for space heating and hot water, driven by greater operational activity, including expanded
short courses, and unusually cold summer weather, which saw heating degree days in June alone increase by
116% from 2023 to 2024. Additionally, a boiler failure at Wallace Studics in December 2022/January 2023 caused
the previous year's gas consumption to appear artificially low. More positively, a 4% reduction in electricity usage
helped mitigate the overall impact.

The methodology employed for the calculation of gas and electricity emissions follows the UK Government's
Environmental Reporting Guidelines 2019 and is aligned with the Greenhouse Gases {(GHG) Protocol Corporate
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Standard. The energy consumption data used is derived from supplier invoices and verified against our automatic
and manual meter readings to ensure accuracy in calculating consumption.

The Royal Conservatoire of Scotland does not own any fieet vehicles and, therefore, has no direct responsibility
for fusl combustion related to transport in institution-owned or controlled vehicles. Due to current system limitations,
we are unable to provide data on fuel consumption for business travel using personal or hired vehicles; however,
waork is underway to implement systems improvements which will enable data to be gathered.

Under the SECR, we do not have responsibility for any emission sources that are not included in our Financial
Statements.

Environmental Sustainability

At RCS, we are committed to embedding sustainability across every aspect of our institution, embracing a whole-
systems approach that spans our curriculum, culture, and campus operations. We believe in the transformative
role that the arts and education can play in shaping a better world by addressing global challenges. Through
fostering collaboration and partnerships, we aim to build a community that champions sustainability, promotes
social justice, and drives economic prosperity. Our vision is to nurture a sustainable community that supports and
celebrates inclusive art-making, from grassreots initiatives {o world-leading performances and productions.

Recognising the need for specialised expertise to accurately assess the full carbon impact of our activities and
develop a robust Carbon Net Zero Plan, a full-time Carbon and Sustainability Manager was appeinted in December
2023. This role is essential in mapping our baseline emissions across the instifution and crafting a comprehensive
carbon reduction strategy. We are on track to finalise this plan by October 2024, reaffirning our commitment to
sustainability and proactive climate action.

Over the past year, we have implemented and planned several key sustainability initiatives, including:

+  Sustainability Policy; Embarked on developing a comprehensive Sustainability Strategy and governance
structure, including key objectives and a Carbon Management Plan;

o Sustainable Procurement: A stronger emphasis has been placed on sourcing locat, sustainable products
and services wherever feasible;

« Solar PV Project. The design and planning phase for a Selar Photovoltaic array installation at Wallace
Studics has been completed and is due 1o be installed and commissioned in autumn 2024,

o LED Replacement Programme: Ongoing review and continuation of our LED replacement and controls
programme to improve energy efficiency of lighting throughout the estate;

+  Waste reduction: Review and revision of resource use on campus to encourage behaviours which reduce
the production of waste and promote reuse or recycling of materials;

e Sustainability Engagement: Held termly "Town Hall' meetings to engage staff and students in sustainability
initiatives, encouraging feedback and new ideas;

= Student-Led Green Wall Project: Initiated the planning and design of a student-led ‘Green Wall' project to
promote sustainability awareness and provide information;

» Sustainable Productions: Within our production output we are piloting and beginning to implement the
recommendations outlined in the Theatre Green Book, a framework aimed at making the theatre industry
more sustainable and involving future theatre-makers in climate action;

s Carbon Literacy Training: Continued defivery of annual Carbon Literacy training programme for both staff
and students;

«  Sustainability Induction: Delivery of an ‘Intreduction to Sustainability’ session to all new students at the
start of the academic year;

« Digital infrastructure; Continued development and expansion of digital infrastructure to facilitate and
promote online learning and working;

+ Collaboration and partnership: Continued collaboration with local Community Interest Companies such as
Re-Set Scenery, which sustainably removes stage set and provides materials for future productions.

Estates and Infrastructure Developments

We have continued to consider possible options for additional estate within the city centre to house expanded short
course activities, further growth in postgraduate numbers and more space for Research and Knowledge Exchange
(RKE). A detailed feasibility study was carried out on one location, but the indicative conversion and refurbishment
costs are prohibitive, while there are heightened risks of not achieving the additional student growth required o
justify more space given the prevailing economic clinate. Sharter term rental solutions are under consideration to
alleviate existing space pressures caused by curricular changes going into the new academic year. This will allow
time for the central timetabling exercise to occur which is important with several curricular changes in the pipeline
and should result in more efficient use of the estate and inform the amount and type of any additional need.
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Qutcome Agreement

The Conservatoire’'s Outcome Agreement (OA) for 2023-24 focused on challenges in recruitment of students,
including from disadvantaged backgrounds, in the aftermath of the global pandemic and subsequent economic
downturn. It also focused on planned transformation of Transifions and strong KE outcomes, as well as quality
learning and teaching initiatives, programeme reviews and student engagement.

The deveiopment of the Conservatoire’s Strategic Plan was also covered in the OA2023-24, as the plan was
approved by the Board of Governors, The QA content focused on planned curriculum review activity completed in-
cycle 23-24, as well as employability of students, success of graduates and improved NSS outcomes and forward
planning. A particular need to focus on developing provision respansive to growth areas in the cultural economy,
notably film and production in Scotland, is central to the curriculum review project. Additionally, the planned growth
in blended learning MA provision wift add opportunities to professionals who want to upskill, or recent graduates
looking for additional experience and networks, in these key areas of film, production and digital innovation.

in response to the NSS outcomes, plans were articulated to increase the provision of feedback quality and
assessment clarity to students, as well as ensure student feedback was more obviously and timeously acted on.
Each school formulated a plan, and student feedback/experience forums were initiated at school, rather than
institutional level for the first ime, resulting in more robust engagement by programme reps. NSS resuits for 23-24
show further improvement overall, but in a statistically significant way in some key categories relating to
assessment and feedback, and clarity of task briefs. Some work requires to be done on ensuring that students
understand what is meant by 'student voice’ since the opportunities that they receive to articulate concerns and to
feedback are numerous (remarked on in many external examiner reports), but some glitch in the communication
loop persists — leadership staff in all schools have been asked to fook at this for future years to ensure that students
are aware of the channels for their feedback, what is done with it, and crucially, when it is unrealistic, that an
explanation is given of RCS rationale, so that students can understand decisions.

The OA 2023-24 gave examples of student success and industry partnership across programmes, providing a
window to work-based learning that is a hallmark of every programme at RCS.

Finally, graduate outcomes data demonstrated the continued success of RCS graduates in gaining highly-skilled,
long-term employment after their studies. The latest data obtainable related to graduating cohorts of 2020-21, the
second vear to be adversely impacted by Covid-19, which prevented some final year student performances or
required adjustments including a 'safety net' no detriment assessment approach from March 2020 onwards.
Climate emergency data reporting also increased in line with the previous year in the QA, as the Scottish
Government and SFC move towards expecting carbon neutral plans from institutions by November 2024,

The Board of Governors approved both the Outcome Agreement and the associated annual self-evaluation report
prior to submission to SFC. RCS's 2023-24 Cutcome Agreement can be found at:
Annual Accounts & Outcome Agreement - Roval Conservatoire of Scotiand (res.ac.uk)

The reporting mechanism and timelines are changing for future years, and the forthcoming self-evaluation of the
0A 23-24 will be the last in this format.

Future prospects

RCS has made an overall surplus of £2,280,000 in 2023-24, £1.50M of which is due to a donation from RCS
Endowment Trust granted during the year and received in August 2024. This donation will help to offset the overall
reduction in cash and shorl-term investments for the year of £0.50M following a reduction of £1.20M in the previous
year and support RCS into 2024-25 when a deficit of £0.73M is forecast while initiatives to address the deficit are
implemented. These initiativas include the commencement of a tuition fee reset for incoming students from 2024-
25, a planned increase in postgraduate student numbers, introduction of low-residency masters programmes from
2025-26, an expansion of the contribution from pre-HE short course activity, review of the operating model to seek
efficiencies in delivery of teaching and support and a focus on growth in philanthropic giving. The objective is to
return to eperating surpius in the short to medium term. However, despite a fall in inflation, minimal cuts in teaching
funding for 2024-25 relative to the sector as a whole and a period of reduced employer pension contributions to
Strathclyde Pension Fund, the financial outlook remains difficult.

Academic developments
The foliowing provision underwent review successfully during the year:

« BA Acting, BA Modern Ballet, BA Production Arts and Design, BA Production Technology and
Management, BA {Hons} CPP and BA Filmmaking.

s CPP intake has been paused for a third year and its final year was reviewed alongside the rest of DDPF
undergraduate provision. Thereafter (from 25-28) the programme will no longer run.
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+ We continue to make progress on our QESR {Quality Enhancement and Standards Review) action pian
to address recommendations made by the QESR review pane)). This includes having reviewed the Quality
Assurance Handbook in full and rewriting numerous student-facing policies with clearer student-facing
language and easier-{o-follow guidance on processes.

Access and employment of disabled persons

RCS's building and facilities are predominantly accessible in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act
2010 and each refurbishment or new development continues to enhance the overall level of accessibility. There is
an Access Policy in place for members of the public with disabilities who attend events at RCS.

Applications from disabled persons for employment are always fully considered, and if a disabled candidate meets
the minimum essential criteria for a post, they are always invited to attend an interview. Ultimately, however, the
most suitable applicant for a post is selected, whether or not that person is disabled. It is the policy of RCS that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, provide equality of
opportunity to that available to other employees. In the event of existing employees becoming disabled, every effort
is made to ensure that their employment within RCS continues and appropriate adjustments to the workplace and/or
work pattems are made, along with the provision of relevant fraining to undertake suitable alternative employment.

Fair Work Practices

The People and Culture Committee has been effective for one full academic session. The Committee comprises
certain Board members with representatives of the Conservatoire Senior Management Team {CSMT), staff and
Trades' Unions in attendance. The Commitiee drives forward the strategic direction in areas retating fo people and
culture — specifically recruitment and induction; learning, training and development; recognition and reward; staff
and student voice; people infrastructure; equality, diversity and inclusion; and health safety and wellbeing. In its
first year, the Committee developed the first Staff Survey, launched in May 2024. The results of the survey have
been shared with all staff, and they will inform key projects for the coming year, Progress updates on kay projects
are communicated to staff through the Commitiee, quarterly updates to line managers, and through frade union
representatives.

A Staff Forum is being relaunched with a revised remit, which will provide a cross-institution platform for staff voice
at an operational level and will work to improve communication and effectiveness of the institution, whilst also
working to redefine its sense of community in a new hybrid working environment. This is a key project for 2024-28
and will be informed by the findings of the staff survey.

In line with the Fair Work First guidance, RCS has committed to alignment with the Living Wage Foundation rates
of pay and is working towards Living Wage Employer recognition. RCS supports staff development and provides
mechanisms for staff to request support through a variety of means. This includes financial support for short term
activity, and for more structured study toward qualifications. In addition, RCS offers Athenaeum Awards through its
Knowiedge Exchange and Engagement work to support staff to develop research ideas, explore pedagogy and
coliaborate with other organisations and artists. RCS offers staff a range of Flexible Working arrangements through
its suite of Family Friendly Policies, in addition to offering hybrid working arrangements where appropriate.

RCS does use zero hours contracts for certain areas of activity however these contracts do not include exclusivity
clauses and offer staff flexibility fo be able to select the extent to which they engage with RCS depending on their
other commitments. Given the sector we work within, many staff have portfolio careers and find the flexibility and
agility of these contracts beneficial in managing their competing priorities. Examples of these include our part time
teaching staff, who work within ensembles, orchestras and/or may run their own businesses, in addition to
detlivering specialist 1-1 teaching fo instrumental students. Teaching allocations are confirmed at the start of the
academic year. Through the year, the part time teaching staff have flexibility in how and when they deliver teaching
and can work these hours around other commitments. This aflows our students to benefit from the experience of
practising artists, whilst offering a level of stability of income for the teaching staff for the year. Zero hours contracts
are also used for Front of House staff, who can self-select shifts for the coming month based on their avaitahility,
Many our ushers are students, and the flexibility of the confract enables them to vary their hours according to the
requirements of their study at different times of the year. RCS also offers a formal procedure through which staff
on variable hours contracts such as these can request consideration for a pro rata contract, and there is a clear
process and set of criteria.

RCS is committed to its evolving Equality, Diversity and Inclusion agenda, demonstrated by its prominence within
the People and Culture Committee remit and Supporting Plan.

Promotion of Equality of Service under the Equalify Act 2010

RCS Mainstreaming Equality Report 2023 provides information on key ways in which we promote equality of
delivery of service to different groups and have due regard to the public sector equality duties under the Equality
Act 2010. Our current Eguality Quicomes 2021-2025, which focus on our priority areas for action, also provide
information on success measures, strategic links, and how the Equality Outcomes link to the general equality duty
of the Equality Act 2010. Our Equality Impact Assessments underpin the Conservatoire's vision and commitment
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to provide our staff and students a positive and rewarding learning experience and to make a positive difference to
the wider society. We use RCS Equal Pay Review to demonstrate our openness and commitment to the principle
of equal pay for like work and for work of equat value, irrespective of gender, race, disability, or any other protected
characteristic. Through this review, the Conservatoire provides statistical data and narrative on the comparative
earnings of our staff by gender, race and disability; occupational segregation, and how we intend to address our
existing pay gaps.

These documents are underpinnad by a wide range of work and initiatives that include:

» Focused and challenging training for staff and students;

+ Development of Gender-Based Viclence (GBV) Guidance and GBV First Responders provision, to
support and assist students or staff wishing to disclose any incident of GBV or sexual harassment;

+ Involvement in sector wide developments in ED issues (i.8. equality impact assessment processes),

«  Working with departments and programmes to facilitate increased learning around race and diversity and
inclusion;

» Development of in-house networks for staff and students that will feed back into policy development (e.g.
Student and Staff Neurodiversity Networks);

+  Development and monitoring of a new British Sian Lanquaae Plan 2024-2030

+ Monitoring, analysing, and publishing gender pay gap and occupational segregation information in terms
of gender, disability and race;

+  Conducting an accessibility audit of our premises to evaluate and address the accessibiiity of our buildings
that is consistent with good practice in accessibility standards, and help make our venues, events, and
services more inclusive.

Health, Safety, Wellbeing and Child Protection

During the 1ast year there have been several developments, improvements and activities taking ptace which are
summarised below.

institute of Safety and Health (IOSH) Managing Safely training provided,

Hearing Protection made available to all new students; :

An acoustician has assessed some of the Brass and Jazz rooms;

Display Screen Equipment (DSE) support and equipment provided to staff on campus
and at home;

S-year Health, Safety and Wellbeing {HSW) Strategy being implemented;

Yoga Classes provided;

Animais on Campus Policy updated;

First Aid Needs assessment created;

An RGS stress risk assessment has been created;

Welibeing at Work Guidelines created.
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Wellbeing at Work Guidelines have been daeveloped with tools and information provided to support staff. The HSW
team provides training opportunities for staff relating to positive mental health and wellbeing with more training
cpportunities being developed this academic year.

All staff who may work on their own are Protection of Vulnerable Groups (PVG) checked. Training for Designated
Child Protection Centacts from the National Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children (NSPCC) has been
completed. Our Child Protection Policy has been reviewed and is available on the RCS weabsite along with other
Child Protection information,

Financial Resuits

Financial Summa

2024 2023

£000 £'000
Income 30,684 27,650
Expenditure {28 768) {27 759)
Surplus/{deficit) before other gains and losses 1,916 (109}
Loss on disposal of fixed assels (N {3)
Realised loss on investments (340} -
Surplus/(deficit) before unrealised gains and losses 1,569 (112)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investments 711 (603)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2.280 (715}
Surplus/(deficit) for the year before FRS102 pension adjustment 1.516 {516}
Operating surplus/{deficit) (excluding gains and losses, endowment
and restricted income) 1,658 (566)
Capital expenditure 484 704
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits 5,196 5737
Net current assets 5,960 4,803
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The surplus for the year before unrealised gains and losses is £1.57M (2023: a deficit of £0.11M).

Funding Council grants increased by £0.74M due fo an uplift in the Small Specialist Institution grant during the year
offset by movements in the provision for claw back for under-enrolment of students. Tuition fees increased by
£0.60M, mainly due to growth in international fee income and pre-HE activity and other income was boosted by a
donation from RCS Endowment Trust of £1.50M {2023: nil). Total income increased by £3.03M.

The continuing favourable market conditions resulted in a net overall credit on the FR5102 pension service charge
and net interest of £0.76M (2023: a charge of £0.20M) which significantly mitigated the overall increases in staffing
and other operating expenses and contributed to the sumplus for the year.

Staffing costs increased due 1o the average annual pay award of 3.5%, increments and a modest growth in overall
numbers, Operating expenses increased due to project management and consultancy costs in refation to the
implementation of a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, increased costs of IT contracts, electricity,
insurance and provision for bad debts and student accommuodation voids. The overall net increase in expenditure
is £1.01M,

Realised losses on investments of £0.34M were incurred when the portfolios were re-balanced by the incoming
investment manager.

Unrestricted general reserves before capital asset donations at the year-end were £13.16M (2023: £12.35M).

The position relating to RCS's involvement in Strathclyde Pension Fund has improved compared to the previous
year. The FRS 102 report at the year-end showed a net pension asset which has increased compared with the
previous year, but it should be noted that the pension asset has not been recognised and detalls are set out in
accounting policy note 1h and note 23 to the financial statements.

Cash on hand including short-term investments at 31 July 2024 was £5.20M (2023: £5.74M), a net reduction of
£0.54M.

Summary of Investment Performance
RCS's investments are managed on a discretionary basis by a professional fund manager on behalf of the Board

of Governors and monitored by the Finance and General Purposes Committee. The fotal refurn across the
managed portfolios for the year was as follows:

OverfUnder
Benchmark (CPI Total Return Performance
+3% compounded
monthiy)
% % %
5.2% 12.0% +6.8%

A new investment manager was appointed with effect from August 2023 and the transfer of the portfolio assets from
the previous manager occurred in stages through that month. A significant rebalancing exercise was then
undertaken, aiming to achieve a long-term annual return of CPI+3% through a combination of capital growth and
income.

There are five portfolics, three of which are identical in terms of asset allocation, stock selection and the weightings
in individual holdings, The Generat Fund provides income for unrestricted use within RCS; the Prize Fund provides
income to fund annual prizes, and the Piano Fund provides income in support of instrument leasing charges. The
remaining two portfolios were created from donations received, one as a permanent endowment and cne as an
expendabile endowment.

The portfolio holdings are diverse both in geography and sectors, This diversified approach aims to mitigate stock
and sector specific risk and to where possible reduce porifolio volatility.

The portfolios have benefited from exposure to the US technolegy sector and a range of non-tech investments
{financials, UK mid-cap and industrials) have performed well since the funds’ inception. The duration of the
government bond allocation in the portfolic has progressively increased as inflation cools and cuts in interest rates
are expected. Fixed income assets now offer both an attractive risk-adjusted return and portfolio diversification.

RCS will not invest directly in companies which derive more that 5% of their revenues from the following sectors:
oil and gas exploration, coal mining, armaments or tobacco. Additionally, RCS will not invest directly in companies
that are classified by Morgan Stanley Capital international as failing to comply with the UN Glebal Compact
international agresment.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Strateqic Risks

The Board of Governors has adopted a Risk Appetite Statement which defines risks that RCS is willing and prepared
fo take, risks that RCS needs to reduce and risks that RCS is not willing to accept. In addition, the Risk Appetite
Statement:

Provides guidance on the categorisation of risks inherent in existing and new activities;
ldentifies the risk boundaries, where, if the risk were to crystallise, the impact is adverse and not
acceptable,

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2024

how the risks inter-relate; and

1
2
3. Supporis a comprehensive analysis of the risk across RCS, promoting awareness and understanding of
4

Provides a consistent methodology for examining risks and identifying risks that have to be taken to

achieve the strategic objectives.

RCS has determined the institutional risk appetite within a number of categories which were reviewed during the

year and are as follows:

Category Risk Appetite
Compliance and adherence to statute, regutations and professional standards Zero

Health, safety & well-being and safeguarding Low
Development of learning and teaching and research High
International growth and development Medium
Student lifecycle experience Medium
Reputation Low/Medium
Financial stability and flexibility Low

People and culture Medium
Major projects Low/Medium®
Physical environment Medium
Virtual security and resilience Low

* Risk appetite depends on the nature of the project.

The Board of Governors manages these risks through the senior management team which, together with lay
Governor participation, forms the Risk Management Group. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit
and Risk Commitiee on the controls and mitigating actions that are in place and planned.

The higher strategic risk areas are regarded as being:

Achievement of student recruitment targets and ability to deliver programme change and growth in a cost
effective, space efficient manner

The main lever RCS has to generate additional income is growth in tuition fees. In the HE space this is becoring
maore difficult due to a combination of increased intensity of competition from other institutions post-Brexit, the legacy
impact of the pandemic on the applicant pool and the effect of the current economic environment on both potential
applicants and existing students. in pre-HE a key constraint in volume growth is availability of space under current
custom and practice,

RCS mitigates this risk through:

+ New recruitment strategy which will continue to target main existing international markets and diversify
into new markets;

Performance projects, masterclasses, and audition tours for partner feeder schools,

Centralised timetable to be implemanted from 2024-25 to increase efficiency of space allocation;
Evolution of programme portfolio to appeal to a wider applicant poal;

Curricutum review process to rationalise production calendar and delivery of music teaching;

Usa undergraduate review process to ensure attractiveness/marketability of programme content;
Deployment of alumni ambassadors in recruitment activity;

Workload allocation model to ensure Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff time is appropriately distributed
across key categories;

Revision of teaching model and streamiining of production calendar;

Alignment of management structure of pre-HE activity with senior phases {music; drama, production, and
film; dance) to develop pipeline;

Fundraising focus on building scholarship funds;

Deployment of video-based auditions to ensure geography is not a barrier to application;

Connecting offer holders to current students and alumni where possible and appropriate.

e & & » & &
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Failure to maintain financial viability in the short to medium term

RCS has achieved a surplus for the year, but this is largely due to financial support provided by RCS Endowment
Trust. There is a forecast deficit for the year ahead and a break even for the following year dependent in the main
on the successful implementation of growth initiatives. The short to medium term outlook for core grant funding is
poor with in-year cuts to Government Departmental expenditure announced.

RCS mitigates these risks through:

. Dialogue with SFC through which RCS has secured additional SSI grant funding and mitigation of grant
cuts for the 2024-25 settlement;
. Engagement with SFC to make the case that claw back of grant should be mitigated in recognition of the
particular on-going challenges RCS faces due to the impact of Brexit and the pandemic;
Development of academic portfolio to improve prospects for Scots applicants;
Additionai financial support from RCS Endowment Trust to provide a buffer of working capital while growth
initiatives are being implemented;
. Tuition fee reset from 2024-25 which will bulld up in the coming years,
Increased investment in and focus on expansion of pre-HE and short course activities to generate
Increased financial contribution;
Close monitoring of cash levels and cash flow projections;
Availability of a general investment portfclio which could provide a cash buffer if required;
Targeted use of additional KEIF funding to protect future funding allocations;
RCS Endowment Trust continues to provide financial support to RCS Trust to mitigate loss of Associated
Beard of the Royal Schools of Music (ABRSM) donations which alfows continuation of scholarships to
support RSC students. This resource has been enhanced in the short term in recognition of the impact of
cost of living challenges to recruitment and retention;
) Additional support from RCS Endowment Trust to expand fundraising capacity.

Fallure to adapt to maintain longer term financial sustainability

The chailenge of longer-term financial sustainability cannot be separated entirely from the issues which face RCS
over the short/medium term and many of the mitigants overlap and support both risk areas. Other mitigations
include:

* The compound impact of embadding of tuition fee reset introduced for incoming students from 2024-25;

. Development and introduction of a suite of low residency master's programmes for 2025-26;

. Planned growth in student numbers through to the end of the planning period;

. Continuing institution-specific lobbying as the nation’s only conservatoire,

. Focus on retumns from the increased investment in the development and fundraising operation to boost
philanthropic giving for core and scholarship purposes;

. Continue to market RCS positively internationatly and work to maintain high standing in world rankings;

. Innovations in curriculum and new programme offerings to remain relevant and afttractive in the
marketplace;

. Pensions provision is regularly examined and kept under review.

Delivery of major systems implementation

RCS is in the process of implementing a new integrated human resources, payroll and finance system, a major
project which is being undertaken alongside business-as-usual activities. The initial plan was to go live in August
2024, but the timetable has slipped, and the project has been re-planned and is now being delivered in a phased
way as user acceptance testing and data migration are completed satisfactorily.

The rigks are mitigated by:

A governance structure with Project Board and Project Team with defined responsibilities;
Extension of appointment of professional project manager,

A detailed project plan with risk and issues register that is regularly reviewed;

System dependencies and workarounds part of assessment of go live decisions;
Retention of existing system for a period;

Provision of additional staff resource to support colieagues;

Additional consuitancy time from the supplier;

Specialist database consultant appointed to supplement staff resource;

Go live checkiist for each key component;

Communication plan to keep colleagues informed of rollout timeline.

4 & & & & & % & 9
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

In Autumn 2023, the Board of Governors agreed a comprehensive suite of strategic performance indicators to assist
it to monitor performance across the range of RCS’s activities aligned to the strategic plan.

The majority of the operational KPis are financial ones, with the headline KP! focusing on erasing the deficit and
generating a moderate surplus by 2026. Achieving this has involved the institution focusing on stabilising HE fee
income and well as balancing out non-HE student fee income, research granis and contracts, fundraising, and
scholarship development.

HEADLINE METRICS

2023-24 2023-24 On track

Budget target Outcomes
income generation to stabilise the
financial health of the institution {£1,1568,000) £1,569,000° See foot note
Stabilise HE student fee income by
ensuring recruitment targets are met £9,447.000 £5,094,000 No
increase proportion of non-HE funding £3,577,000 £3,167.000 No
income
Research granis and contracts (ex- £82,000 £104000| Yes
SFC)
Grow fundraising income by 15% per £371,000 £764.000| Yes (see narrative
annum batow)
Number of Research Outcomes:
Applications for external funding 48 11| Yes
Research outputs 76| Yes
2022/23 baseline

Scholarship donations from Trusts, £776,000 £1,326,000| Yes

Foundations, and individuals. (nb.
raised via RCS Trust)

Grow the Higher Education student
poputation responsibly (final numbers 1,222 1,195 No
at academic year end)

Maintain the Student Achievernent 96% 86%!{ Yes
Rate (SAR) ~ completion rates

Improve the Student Experience (NSS 73% 75%] Yes
overall satisfaction)
Maintain excellent Graduate Quicomes 94% 92% No
(% of relevant cohort in work or further
study)

Fuifill Commission for Widening Access
(COWA) aspirations — to achieve 20%
SIMDZ20 entrants by 2030 15% 17%: Yes

Remain in top 10 of QS World Rankings 6 6 Yes

HE Student numbers and pre-HE activity has been under target in the first year of the new strategy. The operating
result has benefited from a £1.5M donation from the RCS Endowment Trust and a reduction in the net overall
FRS102 pension charge of £913K from that budgeted. There is therefore still a significant underlying operating
deficit before unrealised gains and losses, RCS strategy aims to grow and retain student numbers, grow pre-HE
income and find efficiencies through the curricular review process by making changes to delivery patterns and the
production calendar,

Income from fundraising is ahead of target and the financial statements include in addition the donation from the
RCS Endowment Trust noted above. Donations for scholarships to RCS Trust increased in the year to December
2023. Further investment in fundraising capacity from the RCS Endowment Trust aims to build momentum to

continue to grow philanthropic giving and diversify income.

! Operating surplus before unrealised gains and losses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Governors of RCS is collectively responsible for overseeing RCS's activities, determining its future
direction, and fostering an environment in which RCS8's mission is achieved and the potential of all of its students is
achieved. The Board of Governors ensures that RCS complies with the legislative, regulatory, and best-practice
framework within which Scottish higher education operates.

In the opinion of the Governing Body, the institution complied with all the principles and provisions of the 2023 Scottish
Code of Good Higher Education Governance through the year.

The Board of Governors

The Board of Governors is the Conservatoire’s governing body. Its powers have been defined over a number of years
as reflected in its statutory instruments. The business of RCS is averseen by the Board of Governors who may exercise
all the powers of the company. The statement of Governors' responsibilities for preparing the financial statements is
set out on pages 27 and 28.

The Board of Governors is responsible for RCS's system of internial control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve its business objectives and can only
provide reascnable and not absclute assurance against material misstatement or foss.

As head of the governing body, the Chair is responsible for leadership of the Board and ensures its effective functioning.
The Chair is supported in this work by a Vice Chair and a Senior independent Governor. The Chair oversees the smooth
aperation of the business of the Board.

The Board of Governors met four times during the year up to July 2024, Additionally, the Board normally holds an
annual meeting {o consider strategic planning issues. it may delegate any of its powers to any committee of one or
more Governors.

Size and Composition of the Board of Governors
As of September 2024, the Board of Governors comprises a total of 23 Governors. This total is composed of the
following:
» 14 Lay Govemnors (including the senior lay governor - (the Chair) with proven experience in the performing
arts, industrial, commercial or employment matters or the practice of any profession;
3 ex officio governors: Principal, Deputy Principal, and an elected member from Academic Board,
2 student members: Student Union President & Student Union Vice President;
2 elected/nominated staff Governors {1 elected from the academic staff, 1 from the professional services
staff);
» 2 Union representative governors (1 from Educational Institute of Scotland (EIS); 1 from Unison).

Multiple factors influence both the size and composition of RCS Board of Governors. The main ones are;

1. Ensuring that the skills and experience profile of its total membership is sufficient to meet the Board of
Governors’ commitments in terms of its Statement of Primary Responsibilities, the Scottish Code of Good
Higher Education Governance 2023 and to operate its various Committees.

2. Being able to adapt the Board's skills matrix to accommeodate the changing context in which performance
arts education is developing, within the year to July 2024 having a specific focus on improving representation
on the Board with regards to generative Arificial Intelligence (Al) in the performing arts.

3. Emphasising, through the Board membership, its position as a national institution with an internationat profile
and ambitions.

4. Aligning its singular focus on performing arts education with a Board membership drawing on the expertise
and wisdom of individuals with either direct experience of performance or with leadership/senior management
experience in the performing arls.

5. Committing to eguality and diversity: both equalities legislation and the gender recognition on public boards’
requirements play a role in how the Board considered its composition.

The work of the Board’'s committees

The Board of Governors conducts much of its business through its committees. All of these committees are formally
constituted with their own terms of reference which were comprehensively updated in 2023-24 as part of the
intuition's preparation for quinquennizal review in academic session 2024-25. The commitiees are:

Academic Board which is responsible to the Board of Governors for the overail planning, co-ordination,
development, and supervision of the academic work and for Quality Assurance and Quality Enhancement within
RCS. The membership comprises the Principal, the Deputy Principal, the Senior Academic Managers, the Head of
Information Services, a member co-opted from another academic institution, up to three elected student members,
five elected academic staff members and a lay governor in attendance. During the year to July 2024, the Academic
Board met five times and was convened by the Principal, Professor Jeffrey Sharkey and, in his absence, by the
Deputy Principal, Dr Lois Fitch.
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Finance & General Purposes Committee which infer afia recommends to the Board of Governors RCS's annual
revenue and capital budgsts and monitors performance in relation fo these approved budgets. The Committee
examines all matters which have major financial implications for RCS and, therefore, it is involved in the examination
of ail aspects of RCS's planning and budgetary processes. The scope of the committee’s remit may, from time to
time, include the examination of issues which extend beyond financial, but which are nevertheless of strategic
importance. s membership is composed of 8 governors in total, including the Chair (ex officio), 5 fay govemnors,
the Principal (ex officio), and the Student President (ex officio), plus the convenor of Audit & Risk Committee in
attendance. During the year to July 2024, the commitiee met seven times and was convened by Andrew Butcher.

Audit & Risk Committee which advises and assists on the adequacy of the risk management and internal control
environment of the Conservatoire. The commitiee oversees the proper preparation of the annual report and
accounts and the work of the internal and external auditors. It meets at least three times per year and at least once
per year it meets with the Conservafoire’s external and internal auditors for independent discussions. lis
membership is composed of 4 lay members, plus the convenor of Finance and General Purposes is in attendance.
During the year to July 2024, the committee met three times and was convened by Carcline Roxburgh. The external
and internal audit services were subject to a tender process during the year and as a resuit the Board of Governors
approved the appointment of AAB and Azets respectively with effect from 2024-25. The Risk Management Group,
which meets four times per vear, is convened by the Director of Finance and Estates, and to which up to two lay
governors can attend, is responsible to the Audit and Risk Committee for identification of risk and ensuring that all
identified risks are assessed adequately, addressed in policies, and regularly reviewed and updated in a systematic
process. As part of the revision of committee effectiveness and the preparation of renewed Terms of Reference, a
new Prevent Management Group was implemented to sit under the Risk Management Group to ensure the
Conservatoirs is able to implement changes to guidance quickly and respond specifically to issues associated with
the Prevent duty.

The Nominations Committee which makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on matters refating to its
structure, effective governance, and membership. Itis composed of the Chair {ex officio), the Principal {ex officio),
the Student President {ex officio), the Senior Independent Governor (ex officio), two lay governors, and one elected
staff governor. Central to its business in the year to July 2024 was the recruitment of a new lay governor and
oversight of the renewed Terms and Conditions for all Board commitiees. During the vear to July 2024, the
cammittee met twice and was convened by Professor Dorothy Miell.

The Remuneration Committeea which ensures that the salaries and terms and conditions of members of RC5
senior management, including any severance arrangements, are decided in accordance with agreed palicies and
processes and take account of ali relevant external requirements, including those of: the Scottish Funding Council;
the Scottish Code of Good Higher Education Governance; and the Committee of Scottish Chairs’ Guidance Note
on the Operation of Remuneration Committees in Scottish Higher Education. The committee ensures that ail
salaries and conditions are determined by the use of performance management systems, such as the Professional
Update process, and a transparent reward framework, using appropriate salary benchmarking for RCS/Public
Sector as appropriate and RCS pay award. The committee has two lay governors, the Convenor of Finance &
General Purposes committee (ex officio}, the Chair (ex officio) and is attended by the Director of HR and the
Principal (ex officio} (except during discussions regarding the Principal’'s remuneration) and the Academic Registrar
and Secretary. During the year to July 2024, the committee met once and was convened by Dr David Hare as the
Sentior Independent Governor,

The People and Culture Committee which is responsible for the review of people strategies across RCS. This
includes both a specific focus on the employee life-cycle and also the strategies and policies relating to the student
life-cycle. The committee monitors and reports on sirategic progress and reviews related KPls and data, which wilt
inform future development, The committee makes recommendations for internal reviews as and when appropriate.
The committee provides a People and Culture report to the Board of Governors which includes Health, Safety and
Wellbeing, and Eguality, Diversity and Inclusion activities. The committee ensures that the Conservatoire
approaches are directed by and consistent with RCS Strategic Plan. Its current membership is five lay governors,
the Deputy Principal (ex officio), the Student President {ex officio). and one elected staff governor (ex officio). it has
met four times during the year to July 2024 and is convened by Sharon Mair.

The Fundraising Committes which ensures the approval and oversight of a fundraising strategy that aligns with
and enables the achievement of RCS strategic plan. It also actively supports and chalienges RCS executive in the
development of and securing of additicnal and recurring revenue sources and/or streams to support scholarship,
project, campaign, and unrestricted income activity as well as approving and overseeing the strategy for alumni
engagement and future giving. Its current membership comprises of six fay governors, the Chair {ex officio) and the
Principal {ex officio). During the year to July 2024, the committee met four imes and was convened by Philip
Radney.

The Infrastructure Committee oversees the operation and, where appropriate, development of RCS Estate

Strategy to ensure that it supports the achievement of RCS strategic plan. The committee has delegated
responsibility for the control of major capital works in accordance with the terms of the guidelines and directions
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issued by the Scottish Funding Council and Government, always cbserving the principles and procedures sat down
in the Capital Projects Decision Point Process. M receives, considers, and ultimately recommends the Estate
Strategy o the Board of Governors. Its current membership is three lay governors, the Chair (ex officia), the
Principal {ex officio}, and Student President {ox officic). During the year to July 2024, the committee met six imes
and was convened by Ed Monaghan.
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Additional Governance Groups

The following additional groups meet as required to ensure the effective operation of the Board of Governors; The
Convenors’ Group is for all the convenors of RCS' Board of Governors' related committees and is convened by
the Chair. it meets regularly o discuss issues affecting Board committees, communicates regarding govemnance
and commilttee business between committee meetings as necessary, and oversees the current annual evaluation
of Board committee eFfectiveness. It has met twice in the year to July 2024 and is convened by the Chair of the
Board.

The Ad Hoc Corporate Governance Reference Group is established by the Board of Governors to meet on an
ad hoc basis fo receive sensitive information, for example about complaints or issues that could impact the
governance and/or reputation of the RCS, which might raise general or specific issues of concern or suggest a
significant lapse in good governance. It provides a mechanism for determining whether and in what way these
matters shoutd be considered and eventually brought formally to the attention of the Board. It has not been required
to meet in the last year.

Student and Staff Engagement in Governance and Quality Processes

Students are represented at all levels of RCS’s governance and academic quality assurance and enhancement
processes. Central to student engagemnent in governance and quality is the role of the sabbatical officers of the
Conservatoire's Students’ Union. The President and Vice President of the Students’ Union are members of both the
Board of Governors and the Academic Board. The President of the Students’ Union sits on all but the Audit and
Risk, Fundraising, and Remuneration committees of the Conservatoire.

In compliance with the Code, and to ensure student engagement in all matters related to the academic quality of
their programmes, students are members of all academic-related committees and processes that report to the
Academic Board, other than Boards of Examiners and progress committees. Additionally, membership of the Board
of Governors includes two elected staff Governors {one by academic and the other by professicnal services staff)
and ons staff Governor nominated by the Academic Board, which itself includes two elected staff (one from each
School) and two staff nominated by School committees.

Uniquely in higher education, both elected staf Governors and the President of the Students’ Union are
shareholders in the Company {the Royal Conservatoire being a Company Limited by Guarantee with a
Shareholding). As well as being of significant symbolic and governance importance, rights of shareholders include
the ability to propose resolutions at RCS's Annuat General Meeting.

Risk Assessment and Management

RCS Senior Management Team, together with one Lay Governor, form the Risk Management Group (RMG). The
RMG has responsibility for the Strategic Risk Register which is prioritised in terms of the averall net impact each
identified risk has on the achievement of the business objectives of the institution. The Strategic Risk Register is
reviewed regularly by the RMG, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board of Governors.

New areas of risk and/or weaknesses identified by the RMG (which reperts through the Audit and Risk Committee
to the Board of Governors) are addressed. Where opportunities to further enhance the control environment are
identified, appropriate actions are defined and completion dates scheduled, so that pregress can be monitored
closely.

In summary, a suitable process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks faced by RCS has
been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

RCS's Risk Management process is compliant with the terms of the Scottish Code of Good Higher Education
Governance.

The internal Auditors of RCS assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisational governance, risk
management, internal controls, and value for money. Any recommendations as a result of the internal audit are

reviewed and planned into the development of policies, internal controls and future strategic plans.

In the opinion of the internal Auditors for the financial year, the RCS has a framework of governance and internal
controls that provides reasonable assurance over the organisation’s effective and efficient achievement of
objectives and the management of key risks, except in relation to the CRM System which is an older system used
to administer junior and short-course provision and has a number of critical system weaknesses. In the light of the
findings and the importance of the system for the future, management are taking action to address these matters.

in October each year the Board of Governors receives an Annual Report, forwarded through the Audit and Risk
Committee, which reports on the process of internal controls and risk management at RCS.
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Institutionat Sustainability

The Board of Governors manitors and enhances institutional sustainability through a number of channels. These
include:
s  Stirategic planning;
+ The setting and monitoring of budgets and future financial forecasts with the aim of returning to operating
surpluses year on year,

+« Regular reports on student recruitment and retention;
«  Setting targets and receiving regular progress reports on fundraising activity from the Executive;
« Expansion of fundraising capacity; and
« Appointment of a business development director.
Reserves

RCS carries reserves to allow it to continue fo support the advancement of the business through, for example,
investment in new and replacement capital equipment and the cost of development of new programmes and to
provide & buffer if operating losses need to be absarbed. The Board of Governors through the Finance and General
Purposes Committee undertakes an annual review of the adequacy of reserves to support RCS’s operational and
strategic requirements. The latest review in October 2024 confirmed that the level of reserves was adequate for
these purposes.

Going Concern

As noted in the Annual Report, RCS has produced an operating surplus for the year under review after unrealised
losses on investments, albeit the majority of the surplus is atfributable to donation support from RCS Endowment
Trust. The latest information available indicates that the forecast outturn for the year ahead will be an operating
deficit. However, taking into account current liquidity, cash flow projections, future expected cash generation and
the level of acceptances for places on programmes commencing in September 2024, it is considered that there are
adequate resources to meet RCS’s future financial commitments, There are currently long-term borrowings of
£1,154,000 from RCS Infrastructure Trust which are not repayable on demand and are more than offset by cash
and unrestricted investmenis as set cut in in the statement of cash flows and notes 12 and 14 to the financial
statements. The Governors believe that RCS can manage its business risks despite the current uncertain economic
outlook and have a reasonable expectation that RCS will continue to receive adequate support from the SFC and
from RCS Trusts. Accordingly, the Govemnors consider that RCS will have sufficient resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the annual financial statements.

Governors' Statement on Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Governors have considered the Annual Report and Financial Statements as a whole and consider them to be
fair, balanced, and understandable and to provide the information necessary for stakeholders to assess RCS's
performance, business model and strategy.
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STATEMENT OF PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

To approve the mission, strategic vision and values of the Conservatoire of Scotland, long-term academic and
business plans and key performance indicators, and to ensure that these meet the interests of stakeholders.

Under the general control and direction of the Board, to delegate authority to the Principal, as chief executive, for
the academic, corporate, financial, estate and personnet management of the Conservatoire and to establish and
keep under reguiar review the policies, procedures and limits within such management functions as shall be
undertaken by and under the authority of the Principal.

To retain strategic responsibility for guality and provide public accountability for all aspects of institutionat activities,
including quality assurance and enhancement.

To delegate to the Academic Board the function of the Board relating to the overall planning, co-ordination,
development and supervision of the academic work of the Conservatoire and such other functions of the Board as
may be assigned fo the Academic Board by the Board. Under these arrangements, the Board must satisfy itself
that there are appropriate processes in place with regard o quality assurance and enhancement of educational
provision.

To ensure the establishment and monitoring of systems of control and accountability, including financial and
operational controls and risk assessment, procedures for handling internal grievances, complaints from
students/staff and others (including whistleblowing) and for managing conflicts of interest.

To ensure that processes are in place to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the
Conservatoire against the plans and approved key performance indicators, which should be — where possible and
appropriate — benchmarked against other comparable institutions.

To establish processes to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Board itself,
To estabiish processes to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Chair of the Board.

To conduct its business in an open and transparent manner and in accordance with the Scottish Code of Good HE
Governance, bearing in mind the principle of proportionality and relevance to the nature of the Conservatoire, and
with the principles of public life drawn up by the Commitiee on Standards in Public Life,

To ensure that the Conservatoire meets ifs commitments to the Scottish Funding Council and other funding
providers.

To sateguard the good name and values of the Conservatoire.

To appoint the Principal as chief executive, and to put in place suitable arrangements for monitoring herthis
performance.

To appeint a Secretary o the Board and to ensure that, if the person appeinted has managerial responsibilities in
the institution, there is an appropriate separation in the fines of accountability.

To be the employing authority for all staff in the Conservatoire and to be responsible for establishing a human
resources strategy.

To be the principal financial and business authority of the Conservatoire, to ensure that proper books of account
are kept, to approve the annual budget and financial statemenis, and o have overall responsibility for the
Conservatoire’s assets, property and estate.

To ensure that public funds are appropriately applied and are properly accounted for and that the Royal
Conservatoire delivers value for money.

To be the Conservateire’s legal authority and, as such, to ensure that systems are in place for meeting all of the
Conservatoire's legal obligations, including those arising from centracts and other legal commitments made in the
Conservatoire's name.

To make such provision as it thinks fit for the general welfare of students, in consultation with the Academic Board.
To act as custodian for any legacy, endowment, bequest or gift made directly to the Conservatoire.

To act as the Board of Directors of the Conservatoire as a Company Limited by Guarantee with a share issue and
to manage the business of the Company, exercising all the powers of the Company.

To ensure that the Conservatoire’s constitution is followed at all times and that its business is conducted in
accordance with its various statutery obligations and that appropriate advice is available to enable this to happen.

To both constructively chalfenge and support the management of the Conservatoire.
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STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Council, the
Governors are responsible for the administration and management of the affairs of RCS, including ensuring an
effective system of internal control, and are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year
which disclose a true and fair view of the state of affairs of RCS and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that
year,

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are maintained which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of RCS and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, the Accounts Direction issued by Scottish Funding
Council, the Statement of Recommended Practice {SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions
effective from 1 January 2019 and other relevant accounting standards.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors have ensured that: -

Suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

+ Judgments and estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent;

+ Applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; and

» Financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate fo presume that RCS will
continue in operation. The Governors are satisfied that RCS has adequate resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future: for this reascn, the going concern basis continues o be adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements.

The Governors have taken reasonable steps to: -

+ Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for which they have been
given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Council and any other conditions which they
may from time to time prescribe;

+ Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds and funds
from other sources:

» Safeguard the assets of RCS and hence to take reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities,

» Secure the economical, efficient, and effective management of RCS's resources and expenditure; and
Ensure sound corporate governance and the proper conduct of RCS's operations.

The key elements of RCS's system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the responsibilities,
set out: -

« Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic and administrative
departments;

» A comprehensive short and medium-term planning process, supplemented by detatled annual income,
expenditure, and capital budgets;

« Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and financial results involving variance
reparting and updates of forecast outtumns;

» Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with investment decisions
involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review accarding to
approval levels set by the Board of Governors;

» Comprehensive financial controls and procedures, designed to meet the organisation's financial regulatory
requirements;

+ The appointment of a firm of Chartered Accountants offering internal audit services, whose annual programme is
approved by the Audit and Risk Committee, provides them with a report on the internal audit activity within RGS
and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of RCS's system of intemal controls, including internal financial
control.

e Oversight in meeting financial regulations in the preparation of the Annual Report and Acceunts by a joint
committee of the Audit and Risk Committee and Finance and General Purposes Commiittee

Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatermnent or loss.

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Governors have taken all the necessary steps to make themselves aware, as Governors, of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. As far as the Governors are aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware. The Governors confirm that, whilst the
auditors have been engaged in non-audit wark during the year, sufficient safeguards have been implemented from
the audit firm to ensure that the independence of the audit was not compromised.
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Governors
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The Governors set out in the table below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 August 2023 to the

date of this report unless otherwise noted.

Lay Governors

Professor Dorothy Miell OBE
Caroline Roxburgh

David Hare {Senior independent Governor)

Jo Buckiey

Andrew Butcher

Morag Campbell

Professor Stuart Cross
Sharon Mair

Ed Monaghan

Professor Nacim Pak-Shiraz
Philip Rodney

Professor Matthew Rooke
John Taylor

Robert Laidlow (from 26/01/24)

Governors ex officiis

The Principal:
Professor Jeffrey Sharkey

The Deputy Principal:
Dr Lois Fitch

MNominated by Academic Board
Jean Sangster

Students nominated

The President, Students' Linion:

Ken Fairbrother (to 31/07/24)

Ulysse Tonnele Verjus (from 01/08/24)

The Vice President, Students’ Union
Ulysse Tonnele Verjus {to 31/07/24)
Dale Thrupp (from 01/08/24)

Staff Governors-elected
Elizabeth Jenkinson {Academic staff)
Ruth Calder {Professional staff)

Trades’ Unions nominated
William English (from 01/08/23)
Alexander Lee {from 01/08/23)
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Honorary doctorates of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland

The following honorary doctorates were awarded during the academic session 2023-24:

Akram Khan
BPoctor of Drama
van Heng

Poctor of Music
Vashti Bunyan

Governors’ Interests
Register of Govemors’ interests can be viewed on the website at hiip fwwrres.ac ulfabool ws/averrorsireaisiad

Governors’ interests

Ruth Calder 60 ordinary shares of £1
Elizabeth Jenkinson 60 ordinary shares of £1
Professot Dorothy Miel 60 ordinary shares of £1
Professar Jeffrey Sharkey 60 ordinary shares of £1
Ulysse Tonngle Verius 60 ordinary shares of £1

Governors' interasts are shown as at the date of this report.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association prohibit payment of any dividend on the shares, prohibit any
distribution to the sharehoiders in the event of a fiquidation and require the Chair to vole in accordance with the
wishes of the Governors on cerfain matters. RCS maintains a register of Governors’ interests and 3 register of gifts
o governors and siaff.

Directors’ and Officers’ liabHity insurance

RCS kas armangements for directors’ and officers’ liabifity insurance cover.

Fixed assets

The fixed gsset movements for the year are detailed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Payment of creditors
It is RCS's poficy to obtain the best tenms for all goods and services. There is thus no single policy as to the terms
used. In agreements negofiated with suppliers, RCS endeavors o include and abide by specific payrment tarms.

The creditors’ balance at 31 July 2024 represented 5% of total purchases for the year, equivalent to 19 creditor
days. No interest was paid in terms of the Late Payments of Commercial Debits (Interest) Act 18998,

Audifors

In accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution for the appointment of AAB LLP as auditors
of RCS is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general mesting.

APPROVED BY THE GOVERNORS ON 25 DCTOBER 2024 AND SIGNED ON THEIR BEHALF BY

Professor Dorothy Miell Profassor Jeffrey Sharkey
Chair Principad
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independent Auditor's Report to the Board of Govermnors of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland

Qpirion

We have audited the financial statements of the Roysal Conservatoire of Scolland {the 'RCS') for the year ended
31 July 2024 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Reserves,
the Statement of Financial Position, The Statement of Cash Flows and notes 1o the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lrefand (United Kingdom Generally
Acceptad Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

+  give a true and fair view of the state of RCS'S affairs as at 31 July 2024, and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice; and

+  have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companies Act 2008, the Charilies and
Trustee Investment {Scotland) Act 20056 and regulation 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scolland) Regulations
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs {UK}) and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our repor. We are independent of RCS in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating o going concern
in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the gavernors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material unceriainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on RCS's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Govemors with respedt to going concem are described in the
reievant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Chair's report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's repon thereon. The governors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual reporl. Our opinion on the financiad statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
axtent otherwise explicity stated in cur report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 30, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge oldained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially missiated. if we identify such matorial inconsistencles or apparent material
misstaternents, we are required fo delermine whether this gives rise to & materal misstalemen! in the
financial statements themselves, if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaternent of this other information, we are required o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
It our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+  the information given in the governors’ repart incorporating the strategic report and the governors' report
for the financial year for which the financial stalements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

«  the strategic report and the governorg’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Malters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of RCS and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic repont and the governors’ rapor.
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We have nothing 10 report in respect of the following matters in relation o which the Companies Act 2006 and the
Cnarities Accounts {Scotiand) Regulations 2006 requires us to report to you i, in cur opircon:

+  atdequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adegquate for our audil have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

+  the financial statements are nof in agreement with the accounting records and returns; of

«  certain disclosures of governors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+  we have not received ail the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of the Board of Governors

As explained mare fully in the govemars’ responsibilities statement, the governors (who are aiso the trustees and
directors of RCS for the pusposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial siatements
and for being satistied that they give a true and Fair view, and for such internal contral as the governors determine
is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether
due ‘o fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the governors are responsible for assessing RCS's ability o continue as @
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going concern basis of
acoounting unless the governors either intend o houidate RCS or to cease operations, or have no realistic
atternative but to do so.

Auditar responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditor under section 44(1 (¢} of the Charities and Trustee Investiment {Scotland) Act
2005 and under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accardance with regulations made under those Acts.

Cur objectives are io oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due te fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect 2 maledal misstatement when i/ exdsis. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statlemaents.

frregularitios, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in fing with our responsibiities, oullined above, o detect matenal misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extert to which our procedures are capabla of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
below.

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to RCS and the sector in which #
operates and considerad the risk of acts by RCS which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including
fraud. These included but were not fimited o the Charities and Trustee Investmant (Scotland) Act 2005, and Health
ang Safety Regulations.

Our audit procedures were designed 10 respond 1o risks of material misstaternent in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliterate concealment by, for example, forgary, misrepresentations
or through collusion.

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a matenisl misstatement in RCS's financial statements.
Cur tests inciuded, but were not fimited to:

- Agreement of the financial statement disclosures o underlying supporting documentation;
» Obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring cornplisnce with laws and regulations;
* Enquires of senior management and the govemors, and

* Review of minutes from the Finance & General Purposes Committee meetings and Audit and Rigk Committee
meetings throughoul the period,

Because of the inherent limilations of an audit, there is a risk that we will nol detect all irreguiarities, including those
ieading to a material misstatement in the financial siatements or non-compliance with reguiation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, as we will be less likely 1o become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is
glso greater regarding irreguiarities occuring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional
conceakment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation,

A further dese:ﬂptaon of our respcnsshdmes is avadab!e on  the FRC‘ website
at: hitps e fre, i ; Vs}co | i
ahegw;wmgez%amgag&r%@m This description forms pan of our auditor's report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to RCS’s Govemnors, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 2 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, and to RCS'S Governors, as a body, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Charities
Accounts {Scoland) Reguiations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so thal we might state to RCS's
members and Govemors' those mallers we are reguired to state 10 them in an auditor's repott and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by taw, we do not accept or assurne responsibility lo anyone other RCS,
RCE's governers as a body, for our audit work, for this repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jeremy Chittteburgh CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Chiene + Tait LLP (trading as CT)
Chartered Accountants and Statulory Auditor

61 Dublin Strest

Edinburgh

EH3 6NL

7/”}2024
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 July 2024

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tution fees and education contracts
Research grants and contracts
Other inceme

Investment income

Conations and endowments

Total ncome

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Other aperating expenses

Dapreciation

Totat Expenditire

Surplus/(Deficit) before other gains and losses
Loss on disposal of fixed assats

Realized loss on investments

Surplus/{Deticit) before unrealised gains and losses
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investments
Surpius/(Deficif) for the year

Actuariat {lossi/gain in respect of pension schemes
Total comprehensive income for the year
Represented by:

Endowment comprehensive income for the year
Restricied comprehensive income for {he year

Urrestrictad comprehensive income for the year

Altitems of incorne and expenditure refate to continuing aclivities
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Note

1"

23

2024 2023
£000 £000
14,665 13,923
12,26+ 11,657
104 156
1,000 705
380 424
2,264 785
30,684 77,650
21,514 20,609
8316 8212
938 938
28,768 FERES]
1916 {109
6] 3
(340) -
1,568 133
711 (603)
2,780 (715}
(764) 199
1598 T8
32 (ad)
34 374
1,170 (846)
1518 1575)




Royat G vatoire of Scotl

Statement of Changes In Resarves for the year ended 31 July 2024

Batance at 1 August 2022
Surplus/{Deficit} from the
comprehensive income and
expenditure statement

Other comgrehensive income

Transfers batween revaluation and
income ang expenditure reserve

Retease of restricted funds spent in
the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Batance at 1 August 2023

Surplus from the

comprehensive income and

expanditure statement

Cther comprehansive income

Transfers between revaiuation and
income and expenditure raserve

Release of restricted funds spent in
the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2024
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Rastricted

Share {Endowment
Capital )
£'3000 £000
8 2,223

- 44

- (88)

: (44}

8 2119

- 395

- (83}

- 3z

8 2,491

Restricted Urrestricted Unrestricted Urrestricted
{Gther} {General} {Pension) {Revaiuation) Total
£'000 £¢00 £000 £060 £'000
226 24,314 . 1,711 28 482
468 {1,029} (199) - {¥15)
- - 199 - 199
- 478 - {478y -
(95) 183 - - -
374 {368) - (478} 1518}
600 23,946 - 1233 27,966
228 895 T84 - 2,280
- - (764) - (784}
. (523) - 523 -
{192} 275 - - .
3 647 - 523 1,516
534 24 593 - 1,766 29,482




Royal Conservatoirs of Seatland

Statemant of Financizd Position s at 31 July 2024
Company Registration Ho.BCR4703)

Mon-current assels
Tangte hxeg aossis

Invesiments

Curent annels
Teade ang other feckivatios
trwetlments

Canh and cash equvalonts

Lass: Croditors - smoumts falling due within one yrar
et coreent assors

Totat ausels fess current Kadifitivg

Creditors: amounts {2iling due after more tun one year
Provisions

Pensich provisions

Oher provisicns

Total net aseels

Restrciod reyerves

Endoament reser

Oingr rastrizied resenve

Unensiricted reserves
Gengral raserve
Pengion resgrve

Rewpiuntion rasere

Shate caoial
Total resenes

Annual Raport for the Year Ended X1 July 2024

Hote

1%

12

i}

18

21

2024 2023
£000 E000
32,513 33377
B 548 2037
41,461 A%,404
4215 158
76 1.402
4420 4.335
417 7353
(£.488) 12,550}
TUTEEY Y]
£1.352 8,207
{17 685} {18,807}
234) {2343
AR e
2,481 2179
434 8e0
LR 277
4,599 346
1755 1433
AT FikE)
3 ]
R AT

The finencial statements oo p2oes 35 10 51 wore approved and autharised for lasue by the Board of Governors on 28 October 2074 and were signad o its behalf on that dats by:

vl

Professor Jjoflray Snarkey
Dasignated Offios

Tiractor of Rinance and Estates

»

m.% orothy Mie

Chalr



Roys Consarvataire of Scotiand

Statermont of cash flows for the year snded 31 Suly 2024

Cash Bow from operating activities

Sthoaf Deficit) fur th year

Adptment for non.canh Hems

Capraciation

(Ganyloss on investments

{increasel in deblers

(rcraasa) wr creditors

(Cracigase) in oiher provisions

Pansient cosls Ines eombributons payabis
Adjustment for investing or Bnxneing activities
Hwesimant incoma

L.05% 01 the sale of fixod assas

Endowmant income

Het caeh inflow From operating activities
Canh fows trom Invesiing activities

Procesds fom sates of fxad pstetaiinvestments
ST LR SVesIthents

inyastment income

Endowmaent £inds ieasted

Furnls grashed
Paymatds 10 acquire fxod sssels

Cash fows from fAinancing actvities
Endowmeant cash recetied
frereasailDecrezse) in cash and cash equivalents in the vear

Casn and Cash squivalens at beginring of the yea'
Cagt and cash eGuivarents at end of the yesr

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash and cash equivalents
Casn

Ehryarekafis

Cash aguvaients
Borrowings

L3ekn dus winin o e e

ebt due aiter one yesr

Total
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2024 2073

Hote £900 £oen

2,260 {745

1t 938 935

(371 803

13 {1.509; {362)

15116417 {391} (581

13 103 (73

23 (764} 145

g (350} (434}

7 3

(216} L

[LEE B340

5913 .

it} i3 {1

[ L 424

12 {t 591} {345,

12 {4,467} {183y

1 [S2 704

TE (BT

214G M

—UmmmTTER T

4335 5,55

4,450 4,338

ALY Aggust Ciner non vash A 3T July

2022 Casn fws charges 2024

£600 £000 000 S0

4.335 85 4,420

4,535 55 4,420

(68) - {640)
{1,154 L)
SRR L e PR

3,315 1
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Notes to the Financlal Statements

STATEMENT QF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have baen applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in ralation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SQRP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 and in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS 102), The RCS is a public benefit enSity and thersfore has applied the relevant public benefit reguirement of FRS 102. The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the historicat cost cenvention, modifiad fo indude the investmants at fair value end the revaiuation of cartain musical instruments. The presentational and functional currency of the
RCS is sterting {£}.

1. Going Concern

These financial stetements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Governors have assessed the RCS's ability to continue as a going concemn, a3 outlined more fully in the Report of the
Governors and hava reasonable expectation that the RCS has adequate resources to cortinue in operational existence for the foresesable fulure. Thus thaey continue te adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing these financial statements.

Tangibla Fixed Assets
1, Land and Buildings
The RCS's buildings are specialised buiidings and therefore it is not appropriate to value them en the basis of open market value. Land and buildings are stated in the Staternant of Financied Position

at cost. The main RCS hertage huildings are depreciated ovar their expected useful economic fife to the instifution of 100 years. The Wallace Stucios which is bullt on leasehcld land is depreciated
over its ramaining usefuf fife of 90 years. Material buiiding improvements completed in 2017 are depreciated over their expected useful aconomic life of 25 years,

Where land and buiklings are acguired with the aid of spacific grants or donations they are capitalised and deprecisted as above. Where the refated grants come from government bodies, there are
credited o deferred income and are released to the Statement of Comprehernsive Income over the expected useful economic life of the related assat on a basis consistent with the depreciation policy.
Whare the relztad grants or denations come from other sources, these are recagnised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the peried in which they are receivable.

No depreciation is charged on land or assets in the tourse of construction.

2. Equipment

Equipment costing less than £10,0600 for a group of related items is written off to the Statement of comprehensive incomne in the yaar of acquisiton. A other equipment is normally capitalised at cost.
Capitalised equipment is depraciated over its usefui aconomic life as foliows:

Fumiture, Fittings, Fixtures and Equipment 20% per anhum
3. Musical Instruments

Musical instrumants casting less than £2,000 are written off to the comprehensive income and expenditure account in the yaar of acquisition. Ali other musical instruments, with the exception of cerltain
stringed instruments and pianos, are normally capitaised at cost.

Stringed instruments with a value of £2,000 and above were revalued as at July 2019 as assessed by Mr David Raftray, an external professional valuation expert These stinged instruments were
eriginally brought onte the Statement of Financial Position at valuation, there is therefore ne historical cost associated with these assets, A revaluation will be carried out again in 2025.

The Jehn Webh Brass instrument collection was revalued by [r Grahamn Wells in 2020, an external professional valuation expert. These brass instruments were originally brought onto the Statement
of Financial Position at vaiuation, these is therafore no historical cost associated with these assets. A revaluation wil ba carriad out again in 2025,

A review far impairment of & fixed asset is carriad out if events or changes in tircumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable.
Capitalised musical instruments are depreciatad over their useful aconomic life as foliows:

Stringed instuments 1% per annum
Other musical insiruments 40% per annum

lf is ot possible lo disclose the historical cost and depreciation for the stringed or brass instruments as this relates te denated items, which do not have a cost attached to them.

Investmants
Listed investments held as fixed assets are held at fair value with movements recognised in the Surplus or Deficit for the year.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash at hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdratts, Deposits are repayable on demand if they are in practioe availabla within 24 hours without penalty.
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily cenvartible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in vatue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {confinued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the institution has a present legal or constructive obiigation as & result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to sattle the
ebligation and a reliable estimate can be made of tha amount of the obfigation,

Recognition of Income
Govemment revenue grants including funding council bleck grant and research grants are fecognised in income over the periods in which the RCS recognises the related costs for which the grant is

intended to compensate. Govemment capital grants are recognised in incomea over the expected useful life of the asset. Where part of a governmant grant is deferrad it Is recognised as deferred
inceme within creditors and alfocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than ene year, as apprapriate.

Revenue and capitel grants {including research granis} from non government sources are recognised in income when the RCS is entilled to the incoma and performante related conditions have been
met. Icome raceived in advance of performance related conditions being met, is recognised as deferred incoma within crediors on the Statement of Financiat Position and released lo income as the
conditions are mat, Deferred income will be aBocated batwaen creditors due within one vear and dua atter more than one vear, as appropriate.

Tuition fee and education contract income is recognised in the year to which it relates. incorme from investments, including tax credits, is recogrisad on & receivable basis.

Non exchange transactions without performanca related condiliens are denations and endowments. Donations and endowmants with donar imposed restrictions ara recognised in income when the
RCS is entitied %2 the funds. Income is relained within the restricted reserve urtil such time that it is ulised in line with such restrictions at which peint the income /5 relaased to general reserves
through a reserve transfer.

Denations with no restrictions are recognised in income when the RCS is entifled to the funds.

tnvestment and appreciation of endowments is recorded in income in the year in which it arises and as either restricted or unrestricted income according to the terms of the restriction applied to the
individual endowment fund.

There are three main types of denations and endowments identified within reserves:

1. Restricted donations - the doner has specified that the donalion must be used for a particidar chjactive.

2. Restricted expendabie endowments - the donor has specified a particular ebjective and the RCS has the power to use the capital.

3. Restricted parmanent endowments - the doner has specified that tha fund is to be permanently invested lo generate an income stream to be
applied to a particular objective.

Maintenance of Premises

‘The RCS has a rolling long-term maintenance plan, which forms the basis of the on-geing maintenance of the estate. The cost of long-term and routine corvective maintenance is charged to the
comprehansive income and expanditre account as incurred.

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED;}

Pension Cosis

The RCS parlicipates in three pension schemes two of which provide benefits based on final pensionable pay, the Sirathclyde Pension Fund and Scollish Teachers Pension Scheme. Both of these
schemes are available to staff of more than one employer, are contracted out of the State Eamings-Related Pension Scheme, and the assaets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
RCS. The Funds ara valued by actuaries, the rates of contributiens being determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries, Tha schames are accounted for under Financial Reparting
Standard 102, The third pension scheme is a defined contribution scheme; The Universities and Colleges Retirament Savings Scheme {UCRSS). This schema is available to all staff.

Strathclyde Pension Fund
The scheme is a defined bengfit schema,

Pansion schems assats are measured using market values, For quoted securities the current bid price s tsken as at the financial year end. Pension scheme lizbfities are measured using a projected
unit mathod and discounted at the current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of eguivalent term and currency to the fiability.

4 pension scheme sumplus is nat recognised as i is deemed not recoverable, however a deficit is recognised in full. The movemant in the scheme surplusi/deficit is taken o the comprehensive income
and expenditure account. The actuarial gains and losses are shown in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditurs.

Scotlish Teachers' Pansion Scheme

The RCS also participates in the Scottish Teachers' Pansion Scheme. The schemae is available to staff of more than one employer and it is not possible to identify each participating institution's share
of the underlying assets and fiabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis, Accordingly, the RCS has utiiised the provisions of FRS 102 whereby the contributions to the scheme are accounted for as
if it wers a defined contribution schema. The cost recognised within the RCE's statement of comprehensive income and expenditure is egqual to e contribution payable o the scheme lor the relevant
accounting period.

The RCS also provides enhanced pensions o former employses who accepted early retirament and provision is made on an actuarial basis for the Hability to those formar employees at the time of
their refiral.

Taxation Status
The RCS is a charity within the meaning of the Charities and Trustes Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 arkt as such is a charily within the meaning of Para 1 of Schedule 6 to the Finance Act 2010 and
is recarded on the index of charities maintained by the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator {Charity No. 5C015855). Accordingly the RCS is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or

capital geins received within categaories coverad by section 478-488 of the Carporation Tax Act 2010 (CTA 2040} {formerdy enacted in Section 505 of the Incoma and Corppration Taxes Act 1988
{ICTA)) or Secticn 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1982 to the extent that such income or gains are applied to exclusively charitable purposes.

Operating L eases
Cgeraling leases rentals are charged to the Statament of Comprehensive Incoma on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Concessicnary Loans

Concessionary loans are recognised at the monsetary velue received, ars interest free and are made whaily to advance the charitagle purpases of the RCS.
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING PQLICIES (continued)

Resarves

Reseives are classified as restricted or urrestricted. Restricted endowment reserves include balancas which, through endowment to the RCS, are held as a permanenily restricted fund which the
RCS must held in perpetuity.

Other restrictsd reserves include batances where the donor has included a specific purpose and therefere the RCS is restricted in use of these funds.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabitities are recognised when RCS becomes a parly o the contractuat provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered info. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the dssets of RCS after deducting all of its liabilities.

(#} Financial assets and liabifities
All financiat assets and liabilities are initialy measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or foss, which are

initizlly maasurad at fair vaiue (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the arrangement constitules a financing transaction. f an arangement constitutes a
financing transaction, the financial asset or financial liabilly is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrumant.

Financial assets and liabiities are ordy offset in the statement of financial position when, and only when there exists a legally enforcaadla right to set off the recognisad smounts and RCS intends either
to settla on & net basis, or la realige lhe asset and settle the kability simuitanaousiy.

Diebt nstrurnents which meat the following condtions of being ‘basic’ fnancial mstrumerits as defined in paragraph 11.9 of FRS102 are subsaquently measured et amortised cost using the effective
interast mathod.

Debt instruments that have no stated interest rate (and do not constitute financing transaction) and are classified as payable or receivebia within ore year are initially measured at an undiscounted
amount of the cash or other consideration expecied (o be paid or received, net of impairment,

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The RCS prepares #s financial statements in accordance with FRS 102 as issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council, the application of which often requires judgements to ba made when
formulating the financial position and results, Under FRS 102, the Govermors are required to adopt those accounting policies most appropriate o the circumstances for the purpose of prasenting fairly
ihe RCS's financial positon, financial performance and cash flows. in determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in respect of ilems where the choice of specific policy,
accounting estimate or assumption o be followad could materially affect the reparted results or net asset position of the RCS; it may later be determined that a different choice would have been more
appropriate, Maragerant considers that certain accounting estimates and assumptions ralating to the pansion costs 2nd Fixed Assats are its crifical accaunting estimates.

A discussion of these criticat accounting estimates is provided befow.

Management has discussad fts critical accounting estimates and associated disclosures with its external auditors, its Finance and General Purposes Committee and its Audit and Risk Committee.

Fixed Assets

Land and Buildings at the Wallace Studios are presently depreciated over the duration of the remainder of lhe leasehold which is 90 years. Material building improvements at Renfrew Sireet are
presently depreciated over their ugeful life of 25 years.

Pansion costs

In relation to the cost associated with membership of the Strathclyde Pension Fund the RCS makes estimates in refation {o the assumptions which the scheme acluary appiies to the annual valuation
of the assets, habilities and chargas and which can have a material bearing on the figures.

a
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Maotes to the Financial Statements (¢continued)

FUNDING BODY GRANTS

SFC

Recurrent grant for teaching

Resesrch excelience grant

Reseerch posigraduate grant

Specific intiative grants:

[isabled student premium

{iniversity innovation fund

Dafarred capital grants refeased in year:
Buildings

Equipment

TUETION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS

Scotiand home demicile fees

EL domicile fees

RUK domicile fees

Non-EU demicile fess

Non-cradit bearing coursa fees *
Education contracts

Other {registration and resit fees)

Teatal

* relates to Short Courses and Jurior Conservatoire programmes

RESEARCH GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

Miscellansous research grants and contracts

OTHER WNCOME

fncoma from front of house

Sundry incaeme

European funded projects

RCS agency

GAA income

Widening access to the creative industries grant

INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment Income on andowmaents
Gther investment incorme
Bank interest

DONATIONS AND ENDOWMENTS

Unresinicted donations®
Restricted donations

* Unrastricted denations inciude a donation from the RGCS Endowment Trust of £1.57M,

Annual Report for the Yesr Ended 31 July 2024

2024 2023
£000 £000
13,528 12,869
309 298
85 77
54 54
433 370
2563 253

2 2
14665 13,823
2024 2023
£'00C £000
623 07
431 425
1943 2128
4,659 4,387
3,167 2761
1,182 1116
250 236
12,261 11,857
2024 2023
£000 £000
104 156
2024 2023
£'000 £00¢
35¢ 259
534 215

& 118

43 46

4 [}

63 63
1,000 705
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
63 75
181 273
146 76
390 424
2024 2023
£000 £000
1,814 181
350 594
Z,264 785

Restricted donations in the year were raceived from- RN (£ 1 241, Nick Kuenssberg estate (£100K), RCS Infrastructure Trust (£86K), Wilkam Grant Foundation (£501) and Julisn

Bream Frust (£10K).

42
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Notes to the Financlal Statements {continued}
STAFF COSTS

‘The average number of staff employed during the year (expressed as headcount) was BSB (2023: 827},

2024 2023
Stafi costs for the abave persons: 2000 E'000
Wages and salaries 17,031 15,810
Social secutity costs 1,520 1.414
Pension coentributions paid Note 23 2,744 2,735
Pension net service cost &7 515
QOther staff costs 152 135
21,514 20,609
Senior managemant 1,124 1,134
Teathing staff 12,542 12,024
Teaching support 1,238 1,288
Ressarch grants and contracts 661 6735
Cther support services 1,324 1,248
Administration and central services 2,892 2,697
Premises 1,580 1,499
Gther income generating activities 43 46
21,614 20,608

Governors' salaries{included therain}
Salaries(staff members} 408 385
Pension contributions 92 85
504 470

The numbear of Governors accrniing benefits under pension schemes during the year was 6 (2023; 8). Governors' salaries exciude FRS 102 pension adjustments,
Key management personnel
Key management parsonnel ara the senior management team whe have authority for planning. directing and sontreling the activities of the RGS. Key management personnel cornprise: the Principa;

Deputy Principal; Director of Finance and Estates; Director of Human Resaurces; Sirecter of Music; Director of Drama, Dance, Production and Film; Directer of External Relations; Director of Business
Development; Diractar of Research and Knowledga Exchangs; and the Academic Registrar/Board Secretary. Staff costs including compensation paid to key management parsonnet as follows:

2024 2023
£'000 £000
Total (including sataries, social security costs and other benefits) 1124 1,134

The Chair was entitted o remuneration but waived that entitliement for 2023-24. Other non-staff Governors received no remuneration. The Principal, whe is also the highest paid Governor, received
emofuments of:

2024 2023

Prircipal £000 £000
Salary 160 154
Pension contributions 38 35
Benefis in King* T T
208 196

Accruad pension as at 31 July 26 22
Accruad Jump sum as at 31 July 79 86

* Benefits in kind relate to private medical insurance
The ratio of the remuneration of the Principal to the madian salary of a RCS staff member is 3.19 (2023: 3.19). The ratio including satary, benefits in kind and pension is 3.41 (2023: 3.29).

The number of Govemors recelving emoluments {exciuding pension cantributions) falls into the folowing ranges:

2024 2023

Number Numibar

£400,000 - £113,060 - -
£310,001 - £120,000 - -
£120,001 - £130,060 - -
£136,001 -~ £140,000 - -
£140,001 - £150,000 - -
£150,001 - £160,000 - -
£1606,001 - £170,000 1 1

There wera no other Senior Managers receiving remunsgration {exclisding pension contributions) above £100,000, who are not Govemors,

43
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Notes to the Financiaf Statements {continued}

TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE

Travel and subsistence
Hospitality

- Board mambers
- Board members

Annual Repaort for the Year Ended 31 July 2024

2024 2023
£000 £000
5 g

7 10

12 19

The total expenses paid 1o or on behall of Board members was £5K (2623 - £8K(). This represents travef and subsistence expenses and hospitality costs incurred in attending Board, Committes
meatings and othar everts in their official capacity,

OTHER QPERATING EXPENSES

Teaching dapartmenis
Contracted-out lecturing saervices
Teaching supporl services

Other support sarvices
Administration and central services
General education

Premises costs

Repairs, renewals and maintenance
Student residences

(ther income generating activities
Agency staffing costs

Pension fund net interest

Other expenses

Other aperating expanses include:

Auditors' remuneration

Operating lease rentals

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Caost or valuation

At 1 August 2023
Additions

{isposals

Transfers
Revaluations

At 31 July 2024
Aggregate Dapreciation
At + August 2023
Depraciation charge
Digposals
Revalualions

At 31 July 2024

et Book Vaive

NBV at 1 August 2023

NBV at 31 Juiy 2024

The RCS building on Renfrew Street may riot be sold without the prior approval of the First Minister of the Scottish Government, to whom tie RCS is accountable for the proceeds of the safe.

Assets Under Freehold
Consltruction Buildings
£300 £'000
- 30,281
30 -
47
77 30,281
- 8,222
B2
- 9,594
- 21,055
Kii 20,697

2024 2023
£'000 £000
1,706 1,847
244 1841
380 451
926 736
o871 129
285 228
1,245 1,050
323 349
102 -
506 481
59 188
{83t (316)
500 388
6,316 6,212
2024 2023
£000 £000
Extemal Audit 22 25
FFELP Contract 3 3
Mon-audit services 3 5
‘nternal audit 22 18
Other thar Land and Buildings 493 450
FumiFixt/ Other

Leasehold Filtinga/ Stringad Musical
Builgings Equipment Instrumerts Instruznents Totat
£000 £000 £000 £'0060 £17000
11,837 8,303 B5g 900 56,080
- 305 149 - 484
- {504) (8 - (512)
“7) -
11,837 5857 1,100 900 50,052
1,897 5,065 55 364 16,703
132 362 10 72 938
- {501) Q] - (502}
2,128 4,926 64 436 17,132
9,640 1038 04 636 33,377
9,708 931 %036 464 32,913

The Alexander Gibsen Opera School may not be sald withoutl the written permigsion of Creative Scottand. In the svent of a sale or dispossl, Creative Scollang's share of the proceeds shall be in
direct proportion ta the share of the project costs originally met from the Lottery.

Assats under conslruction relates to the mstallation of solar panels {o the Wallsce Studios campus buitdings snd is partially funded by an external grant.
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Notes te the Financial Statements (continued)

INVESTMENTS
Richard Rose Pibroch Network Generai Prize Piano
Fund Fund Fund Fund fund Total Yotal
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Market valus at 1 August 48 192 6,157 833 797 8027 8236
Additions 243 125 4,467 671 5§52 6058 394
Disposals {168) {148) (4,679) 851) {808} {6,248) -
Increase in market vaiue* 6 17 540 76 72 71 803}
Market value at 31 July 131 188 6,485 929 815 8 548 8,027
Listed investments 2024 2024 2023 2023
Market Market

Value Cost Value Cost
£000 £000 £'000 £900
Fixad interest stocks 1.271 1,308 2,186 2528
Equities 7.277 8,440 5,841 5478
8,548 7,749 8027 8.006

* The increase in market vatue is nat of realised lossas on investments of £340 000 were incurred when iha portfolios were re-batanced by the incoming investment manager.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2024 2023
£'000 £'206
Amourts faling due within one year:
Trade raceivables 158 164
Receivables due from students - net of provision for doubtiul debts 187 328
Other receivables 518 199
Frepayments ang accrued incomae® 2,382 925
* Includes £1.57M due from the RGS Endowment Trust. 3,215 1,616
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
2024 2023
£'000 £'o00
Short term deposits 776 1,402
776 1,402

Daposits are hekt with banks and building societies operating 0 the London market and licensad by the Financial Conduct Authority with less than three months maturity at the Statament of Financial
Position date. The interast rates for these deposits are fixed for the duration of the deposit at time of piacement.

At 31 July 2024 the weighted average interest of these fixed rate deposits was 3.31% per annum and the remaining weighted average period for which the interest rate is fixeg on these deposits was 1
month. The fair value of these deposits was not materially different from the ook value.

CREDITORS | AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2024 2023

£'000 F'000
Trade payabies 254 318
Other craditers 258 315
Accruals and deferred income 1,902 1,853
Laans 66 68

2,480 2,550
DEFERRED tNCOME
Inctuded wihin accruals and deferred income are the following items of income which have been defermed until specific perfarmence related conditions have been mat,

2024 2023

£'000 £000
Donations - 18
Grant income 255 255

255 273

45
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continuad)

CREDITORS : AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2024 2003
£000 £000
Deferrad grant income 16,598 18,853
Loans 1,088 1,154
17,686 18,007

PUBLIC BEMEFIT ENTITY CONCESSIONARY LOANS
2024 2023
£000 £'000
Amounts repayable within one year 68 85
Amounts repayaile between one and two years 66 86
Amaounts repayable between thres and five years 132 132
Amounts repayable in five yaars or more 880 955
Amaunts repayable after mere than one year 1,088 1,154
Total public benefit entity concessicnary leans 1,184 1,220
Lender Amount Term Interest rate % Sorrowar
RCS Infrastruciure Yrust £1,885,000 2042 Nil RCS

PROVISIONS FOR UABILITIES AND CHARGES

Pensgions

ETK0

Balancs at 1 August 2023 234
Increass in pravision 26
Paidfreleased (38)
Balance at 31 July 2024 L)

The RCS provides enhanced pensions to former employees wha accapled eardy retirement and provision is made on an actuarial basis for the liability to thase former smployees at the time of their

refiral. A valuation of the existing pension pravision was carried out at 31 July 2024 by Hymans Robertson, an indepandent firm of actuarnies.

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - PERMANENT

Pibroch
Netwark Prize Fund Prize Fund Piana Fund 2024 2023
Capital Capital ncome Capital Total Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 E'000 £000
Balance at 1 August 2023
Capital 196 787 - 801 1.784 1,888
Accumuiated income - - 265 - 265 247
1986 787 265 801 2,048 2,135
Income
Funds introduced - 64 28 - 92 30
investment income 68 - 28 20 52 72
Increasef{decrease) in valua of invastments 16 76 - 72 164 (130
8 927 319 883 2,357 2107
Expenditiune
Prizes - - (42} - (42) (20)
Transfer to unrastricted reserves to maet expenditure incurrad K - - (19) (18) {30
Management foes - - {1} &) i2) (8)
Balance at 31 July 2024 218 27 278 873 2,294 2049
Represanted by:
Capital 218 927 - 873 2,018 1,784
Accumulated income - - 278 - 278 265
218 927 276 873 2,784 2,048
Anatysis by asset
Current and nen-current asset investments 218 927 276 873 2,294 2048
218 927 278 873 2,294 2,048

A donation from Louis Sterne Trust to support the impact and interdisciplinarity of the Pibroch Network.
Prize Funds are held in frust and are used {o meke prizes to students at the RCS,
The Piano Fund consists of capital gifts, the income from which contributes tewards the leasing costs of the RCS's fleet of pianos.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - EXPENDABLE

Batance at 1 August 2023
Accumulated income

Income

Funds/capital introduced
Invesiment income
Increase in value of investments

Expendilure

Transfer to unrestrictad reserves to meet expendidurs incurred
Balance at 31 July 2024

Represented by:
Capital
Accumutatad income

Analysis by assat:
Non-cusrent asset investments
Cash and cash equivalents

The. MualiserCEMCINSEIIEIE 1% (o maintain andior enhance activities within the Dapartments of Opera, Ballet, Traditional Song and Jazz,

RESTRICTED FUNDS

Balance at 1 August 2022
Incoma

Funds/capital introduced

Expenditure

Reteasa of restricted funds spent in the year
Total restricted comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2024

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2024

2624 2024 2023

E

R
Fund Teta Tatat
£'000 £'000 £000
138 130 88
13G 130 38
124 124 100
2 2 -
5 & -
261 261 188
64) (64} (58}
197 187 130
131 131 48
66 88 82
197 197 130
131 134 48
[53] 56 82
197 197 130

RCS

Infrastructure The Rebartson 2024 2023
Cther Vocal Studies Trust Trust Totat Total
€060 £'00G £'000 £'000 £000 000
27 403 - 170 800 226
160 - 86 - 226 469
a7 (100) {88) 8 (192) (85}
143 (100} - L] 34 374
170 303 - 161 634 600

Other inciudes a lagacy from the Mick Kuenasberg estate, The Bruce Millar Memorial Trust proviging financial assistance to emerging creative arlists, The Witiam Grant Foundation for digital
devalopment and work with cate experienced young people, John Mather Foundation for the purchase of equipment and support of a number of productions and The Julian Bream Tzust to support

sfudents in their respective endeavours at the start of their artistic carears.

The Vecal Studies Fund reprasents a legacy receipt in suppert of vecal studies activities.

The donation from the RCS Infrastructure Trust was used in support of a capital developmant.
The Robertson Trust funds represent a donation which was used in support of a capital development.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authensed:
15,000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each

Allotted, issued and Fuliy Paid:
7.284 QOrdinary Shares of £1 each

Allotted and lgsued
300 Ordinary Shares of £1 each

47

2024 2023
£ £
15,000 15,000
7,284 7,284
300 300
7,564 7,564
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Notes to the Financlal Staterments {continued)

LEASE OBLIGATIONS

2024 2023
The
Whisk
Bon $tudent Musical ol Total
{Archive) Accommodation nstruments

£1000 E£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Fulure minimum tease payments dus:
Not later than 1 year 7 2,430 464 2,801 2900
Later than 1 year and not Jater than 5 years - 9,987 568 10,532 10,562
Later than 5 yaars and not later than 10 years - 2,787 - 2,787 5,013
Total lease payments due 7 15,164 1,829 16,200 18,478

Student accommodation

The Royat Conservatoirs of Scolland has a lease amangement with BASE Glasgow OpCo |t and acts as an administrator in refation to student sccommadation rental income in a private build
student accommodation facility at McPhater St, Glasgow and underwrites any shortfaii in the annuat rent. Totat rental income from students for the yeer was £2,304K and total rent due was £2,406K
leaving & balance dua to BASE Glasgow Lid of £102K. The jease is for a pariod of 20 years commencing on 14 Saptember 2020 with a break option exerciseable by RCS after 10 years.

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Rentai Income 2,308 1,216
Rental costs {2,408) {1.218)
Net costs {102) -

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The RCS's employees betong to three principal pension schemes; tha Scottish Teachers' Pension Scheme (STRS), Local Government Pension Scheme administered by the Strathclyda Pension Fund
(SPF) which are of the defined benefit type, and a defined contribution scheme ~ The Universities and Collages Retirament Savings Scherme (UCRSS).

The RCS also makes pension paymarts to former employees who have taken sarly retirament.

The total pension cost for the year was :

2024 2023
£000 £'000
Contriputions to STPS 1,730 1,614
Contributions to SPF 1.068 1,685
Contributions to UCRSS - 1
2,788 3,300
Increasef{decrease) in pansion provision 26 (42)
2,814 3,258

The actual cost of condributions paid by the RCS dwing the year to the SPF was E985KC
Thers were no cutstanging centributions payabie at 31 July 2024,

Scottish Teachers' Pension Scheme

The RCS participates in the Scoftish Teachsrs' Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded statutory public service pension scherne with banefits underwritten by the UK Gevernment. The scheme
is financed by payments from emplayers and from those current employees who are members of the scheme and paying contributions at progressively higher marginal rates based on pensionable
pay, as specified in the reguiations. The rate of amployer conlributions is set with reference to a funding valuation undertaken by the scheme actuary. The iast four-yearly vatuation was undertaken as
at 31 March 2020. This valuation informed an increase in tha amployer contribution rate from 23% te 26% of pensionable pay fram Aprit 2024 and an anticipated yield of 9.6% smptayers contributions.

The RCS has no Lability for othar empioyers obligations to the multi-employer scheme. As the scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or surplus to distribute on the wind-up of the scheme of
withdrawal from the scheme. The scheme is an unfunged multi-employer defined benefit scheme.

It is accepted that the scheme can be treated for accounting purposes as a defined cantribution scheme in circurnstances where the RCS is unable o identify its sharg of the underlying assets and
#abilities of the scheme,

The RCS's tevel of participalion in the scheme is 0.2% based an the propaortion of employar contributions paid in 2022-23.
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Strathciyde Pension Fund

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2024

The Strathelyde Pension Fund provides benefi(s on final pensionable salary for employees of local government and some other institutions.

The fund is valued every three years by a professionally qusiified ndependant actuary using the projecied unit methog, with the most recent comprehensive vakiation being prepared as at 31 March
2023, The rates of contribution payable are determired by the SPF Board on the advice of the actuaries. Iy tha intervening years the actuaries revisw the progress of the scheme ang prepare an
intedim valuation for the purposes of reporting under FRS 102 as at the end of July. The employer contripution rate for the period from 1 August 2023 to 31 March 2024 was 19.3% of pay, and frem 1
April 2024 to 31 July 2024 was 6.5% of pay. The employes contribution rate for the period from 1 August 2023 1o 31 July 2024 was a varlable rate dependent on the leve! of salary ranging from 5.5%

to 12%.
Principal actuarial assurnptions at the Statement of Financiai Position date:

Investment Returns

Total Returns from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024

Financial assumptions

Future Pension incresses
Future Salary increases
Discount rate

The RCS expects to contribute £427K to #5 defined bensfit pension plans in 2024/25.

Mortality assumptions

The remaining life axpectancies used te determine benefit obligations are as foliows:

Current pensioners

Future pensioners

The major categories of plan assels as a percentage of stated plan assets are as follows:

Equities
Bonds

Property
Cash

The fair vaiue of the plan assats and the return on those assets were as follows:

Changes in the fair value of plan assefs, defined benefit obligation and net Hability

Fair value of employer assels
Present valua of funded liabilities
Opening Position as at 31 July 2023

Service Cost
Current Service Cost
Past service Cost
Total Service Cost

Net Interest

Interest income on pian assets

Interast Cost on defined banefit chligation
Total Net imterest

Total defined benefit cost recognised In income and expenditure

Cashflows

Plan participants confibutions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid

Expected closing position

Re-measuraments

Changes in demographic assumptions

Changes in financial assumptions

Other experience

Return on assets exciuding amoeunts inciuded in net intarest

Totaf re-measuremants recognised In other comprahensive
income

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded habilities

Closing position as at 31 July 2024

2024 2023
% %

9.00 1.50
2024 2023
% %

275 283

3.45 378

5.00 5.00
Maie Female

20.0 yaars 22.9 yaars
20.4 yaars 24.5 years
2024 2023

% %

a2 61

25 27

g 10

4 2
2024 Net 2023 Nat
(Liability)/ (Liability)f
Assets Obligations Assat Assat
£'000 E'G00 £'000 £'008
43 541 - 43,541 41,853
- 26925 {26,825) (32 664}
43,541 26,926 16,616 9,289
- 1,052 (1,052) (1,685)
“ 1,062 (4,082} {1,885}
2187 - 2,187 1,484
. 1,366 (1.366) (1,168)
2,187 1,366 331 316
2,187 2,418 {221} {1,36%)
438 404 . -
285 - 985 1,170
(781) (781) - .
46,351 28,971 17,380 9,090
- {1,314) 1,314 437
- (859) 859 9,813
546 2940 {2,394} {1.863)
1,764 - 1,764 (841}
2,310 67 1,543 7,526
48,661 - 48 661 43,541
- 20738 {28,738} {28,525)
48,881 29,738 18,823 16,616

* The defined benefit asset has been rastricted to £nit in the Statement of Financial Pasition as the Canservatoire does not have the rights to 2 refund or to reducs its payments into the pansion

scheme

43
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PENSION COMMITMENTS {continued}

The Universities and Colleges Retl t Savings Sch

Tha Universities and Colleges Ratirement Savings Scheme provides a defined contribution pension scheme which is open to &l employees. The minimum pension contributions for both emplayer and
employee is 5%. The employer will match an employees contribution up to 5%. There is no cap to the level of amployee contributions into the scheme.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2024 2523
000 £000
Commitments autharised but not yet contracted at 31 July 382 483

‘The abeva relates o the installation of solar paneds to the Wallace Studios campus builgings partially funded by an external grant and a set of timpani.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Royal Conservataire of Scofland is in the process af seeking clarification argund the classification of pansionable pay. At this stage it is nof passible to quantify the patential liability, nor is there
certainty that it would fall due.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dus to the nature of the RCS's operations and the composition of the Beard of Governers (being drawn from public and private sector organisations in Scotland) it is inevitable that transactions will
{ake piace with organisations in which a member of the Board of Govarnors may hava an interest. AR transactions involving organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have an
interest are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the RCS's financial regulatichs and normal procurement procedures.

The Board member and the significant retated parly transactions with their associated organisations during the year to 31 July 2024 are detailed bekow:

Arpounts owsd Amounts
Member Organisation  Relationship Grant Recaived Sales ':r{elatad Pn;;:zesar:tom from reiated owed to
party aled parly party related party
David Hare Royal Society of  Committes £ ~ £ 459 £ - £ - £ -
Edinburgh Mamber
Philip Rodney Dunedin Consort  Board £ - £ 1,634 E 720 £ - £ -
Member
Dorathy ket Univarsity of Professor £ - £ 300 E 80g £ - E -
Edinburgh Emerta
Dorothy Migdl Scollish Opera Trustee £ - £ - £ 2,463 £ - £ -
Jeffrey Sharkey ABRSM Board Member £ - £ 222616 £ 10,772 £ - £ 8,046
Jeffrey Sharkey Cumnock Tryst Board Member £ - € 2,205 £ - £ - £ -
Jeffray Sharkey Conservatoires UK Goyamner £ - £ - £ 11.971 £ - £ -
Lois Fitch Sistema Scoland  Board Member £ - £ 2,324 £ 1.5G0 £ - £ -
Lois Fitch Music Education  Board Member £ - £ 7,453 £ - £ - £ -
Parinership Group
Ken Fairbrother Harrison Parratt Trustea £ - £ - £ 7,578 E - £ -
Foundation
Ken Fairbrother Nationa! Youth Trusteg £ - £ 600 £ - £ a £ -
Qrchesiras of
Scatiand
Jaen Sangster Donald Dewar Arts Trustee £ - £ 480 £ - £ - £ -
Awards
DISCRETIONARY AND CHILDCARE FUNDS
Stadent
Emergency
Childcare Discretionary Fund Total
£ £ £ £
Balance unspentl at 1 August 20723 {5,243) 4,738 9,203 8,699
Repaid during the year 5243 {4,738) (9,203 (8,699)
Aliocation received in year §.331 26,850 692 32,673
Expenditurs {3,548) {23,132) - (27.080)
Balance unspent at 31 July 2024 1,383 3,718 882 5,793
Repayable as ciaw back 1,382 3,718 592 5,783

Grants for discretionary and childcare funds are available solely for students: the RCS acts only as paying agent. The granis and related disbursernents are tharefore excluded from the
comprehensive income and expenditure account.



28 LS DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

In satisfaction of its abligations 1o facilitate students’ aceess to US federat financial aid, RCS is required, by the US lepartment of Education, to present the foliowing Supplemental Schedule in a prescibed
fermat. The amounts presented within the schedutes have baen: - prepared under the historical cost convertion, subject to the revajuation of certain fixed asseds; « prepared using United Kingdos generally
actepted accounting pradlice, in accordance with Finencial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) and the Statement of Recommended Practice: Acgounting for Further and Higher Education {2019 edition); »
prasented in pounds steding. The schedules set ot how each amount disclosed has been extracted from the financial staternents. As set cut abeve, the accounting policies used in determining the amounts
disclosed are not intanded to and do not comply with the requirements of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The aim of the schedules is to support RCS in meseting the
requiremaenis of the US Departmant of Education’s Federal Loan scheme, and not the requirements of the SCRP; the schedule does not form part of the SORP,
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Financigl Statement refersnce

Statement of financial position

Endowmant funds - Permanent and endowment
funds - expandable

Endowmerit funds - Permanent and sndowment
funds - expendable
Restricted funds

Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets
Pension Commitments
Puplic Benfit Entity Concessionary Loans

Public Benfit Entily Concessionary Loans

See below

Statemant of Comprahensive Income -Total
Expenditure
Pansion Commitments

Statement of Comprehensive Income -Loss on
disposal of fixed assels

Statement of Financiai Position - Total reserves
less restricted reserves noted below

Statement of Financial Position - restricted
rasenes

Statement of Financial Pogition -non current assets
+ current assets

Statemant of Financiai Position - Total net assals
lass restricted resarves 2024 vs 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Income - Total
income less restricted comprehensive income for
the year+gains on realised and unreaiised
investments

Statement of Comprehensive Incoms - Total
income

(Gains on reaised and unrealised investments

Expendabla Net Assets
Net Assets without donor restrictions:

Net Assets with donor restrictions:

Term Endawrments with donor restrictions:

Net Assats with donor rastrictions: restricted in perpetuity:

Net Assets with donor restrictions: Other for purpese or time:

Property, plant and equipment, nat {includss Construction in progress and
Capital leases):

Property, plant and aquipment - pre-implementation (includes Capitat
Leases):

Progarty, piant and equipment- post-implementation without owtstanging debt
for original purchase:

Post-employment and pension labiities:

Long-term debt - for keng term purposes:

Lang-term debt - for long term purposes pre-implementation:

Long-term debt - for long term purposes postimplementation:

Total Expenses and Losses:

Total Expenses and Losses without donor restrictions:

Total Expenses without donor restrictions - taken directy from Statement of
Activities.
Other compenants of net periadic pension costs:

Other Losses:

Medified Net Assets:
*Nat Assets without danar restrictions:

*Net Assets with donor restrictions:
Modified Assels:

Total Assets:

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:
Total Revenues and Gains:

Total Revenues and Gains without donor restrictions:

Total Operating Revenue and Qther Additions (Gains):
Investment return apprepriated for spending:
Non-Operating Revenue and Other Gains:

51

2024
£000

28,357

3126

2,491
634
32913
32,429
484

1154
1184

20,538

28788
764

26,357

3,325

48,672

1170

31,050

30,713

kral

2023
£000

25,187

2779

2178
800
33,377
32,673
764

4,420
1,220

27,563

47,758
(199)

25187

2,718

48,757

{846)

26673

27,650

{603)






